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The Group recorded total revenues of approximately
HK$1,237,000,000 in this financial year, which is
approximately 17% lower than those of
HK$1,491,000,000 in the corresponding period of last
year. The Group earned a net profit of HK$59,908,000
in this financial year, which is approximately 10%
higher when compared with that of HK$54,391,000
of last year.

The Group’s main businesses are the original design
manufacturing products (“ODM") business and the
electronic handheld products business. In this financial
year, the electronic handheld products business
contributed approximately 63% of the Group's total
revenue, and this would still be the mainstream
business and focus of the Group. With further
integration of wireless communication network, WiFi
and other new technology, the Group believes that
electronic handheld products would become more
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Analysis of Turnover by Geographical Market
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Electronic Handheld
Products
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prevalent as time goes by. In order to compete in the
market, the Group believes that it is imperative to
merge new and innovative technology into its products,
so as to maintain their uniqueness and enhance the
competitiveness.

As to the ODM business, the contribution of this
business segment in this financial year was 37% of
the Group's total revenue, decreased from 42.9% of
last year. With the ever increasing production costs
putting pressure on the profit margin, the Group forgo
the low value-added and low profit margin products.
Thus, the ODM business segment's earning contribution
would be adjusted accordingly. Overall, the Group will
embrace conservative operating strategies when
managing the ODM business, and believes that it would
be more competitive in the market for the Group to
forge closer collaboration with its technology partners
and to focus on producing more unique and quality
new products so as to enhance its technology quality
and level, and to strive to learn from the technology
partners.

2007 B 4 Annual Report
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&8
Hong Kong
9.3%

HibmEM s

(BfFEER)
Other Asian markets
(including Japan)
75.8%

In analyzing the Group’'s revenue by geographical
markets, other Asian markets (including Japan) are still
generating the largest source of revenue for the Group.
The revenue generated from the Hong Kong market
has maintained at around 9%. The Group will focus
on developing the Asian markets. It will also develop
new products by applying WiFi and other new
technology and launch new electronic handheld
products into the market.

The Group will uplift its technology investments in
Japan and China. In Japan, the Group has set up a
subsidiary so as to forge closer partnerships with the
Japanese technology companies, and to enhance the
technology collaborative network in the Japanese
market. In China, the Group will strengthen its research
teams in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. The Group will
also reshuffle the technology investment on the
mainland, and invest more resources on the engineering
research.
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Overall, the Group will continue exploring
Asian markets and developing new and

B REE 2RSS - innovative products, which are expected to
bring in better growth momentum for the
Group.

KHKR FINAL DIVIDEND

EEg([ZE5g)BEaRBEEBE_ZZ
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) propose a
final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share in
respect of the year ended 31st March, 2007
(2006: HK3.0 cents), payable on or about
Thursday, 6th September, 2007 to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of
Members on Thursday, 23rd August,
2007.

LE |

AAERREFE  RSKRE T
P fEn RIRITEGE %Eﬁﬂ”@ff’ﬁ%
FREAEENLF - MEHEE bankers for their continual support. | would
i@iz——‘?%ﬂlf’ﬁ&?%$§%lﬁﬁ¢25 —ERAE also like to extend my appreciation to all the

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all
our shareholders, customers, suppliers and

A BELE RER . ) .
Bh e Hong Kong Top staff for their dedicated work and their
Brand 2006: Instant-Dict contribution throughout the year.
AEEGW® By order of the Board
TE Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
BEEE LT ATet Chairman
BE  ZETEEFEATNH Hong Kong, 18th July, 2007
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Financial Review

Revenue of the financial year is approximately
HK$1,237 million, which is 17% lower than
approximately HK$1,491 million of the previous year.
During the year under review, electronic handheld
products business and original design manufacturing
business recorded revenues of approximately HK$779
million and approximately HK$458 million respectively.
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Management Discussion & Analysis (Cont’'d)
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Financial Review (Continued)

Operating profit for the year is approximately HK$82
million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$10 million or 14%. After charging finance costs of
approximately HK$0.2 million and other expenses of
approximately HK$4 million in total (2006: other gains
of approximately HK$20 million, finance costs of
approximately HK$1.1 million and other expenses of
approximately HK$15 million), profit before tax is
approximately HK$78 million (2006: approximately
HK$76 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$2 million or 3%. After taking into
account the taxation expenses, profit for the year is
approximately HK$60 million, representing a increase
of approximately HK$6 million.

On the balance sheet side, inventories have decreased
by approximately HK$11 million to approximately
HK$171 million and trade receivables decreased by
approximately HK$19 million to approximately HK$164
million.

Bank balances and cash (including bank deposits) at
the end of balance sheet date amounted to
approximately HK$273 million which was 10% higher
than approximately HK$248 million of the previous
year.

It is noteworthy that the balance sheet of the Group is
getting healthier as compared with previous year and
sets a strong and solid foundation for future business
growth.

2007 B 4 Annual Report
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 31st March, 2007, the bank balances and cash
(including bank deposits) were approximately HK$273
million in total, which was approximately HK$25 million
or 10% higher than that at 31st March, 2006. Total
bank borrowings have decreased from approximately
HK$1 million to approximately zero in the twelve
months’ period.

As at 31st March, 2007, the gearing ratio, defined as
total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities,
has maintained in approximately 0% in the twelve
months’ period. As a result, the finance costs in the
twelve months’ period have reduced from
approximately HK$1.1 million to approximately HK$0.2
million.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2007, there was no trade bills
discounted with recourse (2006: nil).

Foreign Currencies and Treasury Policy

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars or Renminbi. A small portion of the
Group’'s raw material purchase is denominated in
Japanese Yen. The usual treasury policy of the Group
is to manage significant currency exposure and
minimize currency risk whenever it may have material
impact to the Group. The Group does not engage in
any interest rate or currencies speculations.
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Review

The SBU's (strategic business unit) turnover in the
financial year 2006-2007 has slightly dropped as
compared with the last financial year. Due to some
technical problems faced by the technological partners,
the new products could not be launched in the market
on schedule. As a result, the SBU has missed the timing
of launching its new products, and this has affected
its sales performance in the financial year 2006-2007.
Nevertheless, the SBU’s continuous fine-tuning of the
product development strategy to meet the market
demand, and technological investment in medium and
high end products have contributed in meeting the set
targets on both gross profit and net profit margins.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report
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Sales in major markets have been growing steadily.
The SBU’s new products, which are equipped with rich
learning contents as well as wide-ranged multi-media
functions, have received positive market response. Our
continuous effort and investment in building up a rich
learning content library has enhanced our
competitiveness in the market. Although the English-
Chinese and Chinese-English bi-directional full-sentence
translation dictionary has been launched into market
for just two years, it has been significantly contributing
to an increase in our market share. We believe the
sentence translation feature will continuous be a major
feature of our products.

There has been little changes in the electronic dictionary
market in the Mainland China. There has been little
growth momentum in sales and the average retail price
keeps relative low and cannot provide reasonable profit
margin. However, both the demand and supply for
medium to high end products has slightly increased.
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Outlook

Despite that the competition in the electronic dictionary
market is getting more intense, it is believed that with
the Group’'s well-established brand name and
distribution networks in China, Hong Kong and Asian
markets, the SBU can still manage to command a good
business prospect in the financial year 2007-2008 and
the years after. There has been significant upward
pressure on the material and labor costs, especially
with the continuous appreciation of Renminbi.
Nevertheless, through strong strategic partnership with
the components vendors and continuous efforts in
containing the costs, the SBU is optimistic that its gross
profit margin can be sustained in the financial year
2007-2008.

The SBU continues to focus on developing medium
and high end products with more innovative designs,
better functional features, richer learning contents and
leading speech and translation technology. In view of
continuous demand for different varieties of learning
contents for different age of user groups, the SBU will
co-operate with several important content partners for
development of new products for different target user
segments in the coming year. It is believed that these
new products will bring in favorable sales revenue and
reasonable profit margin in the financial year 2007-
2008.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report
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In order to sustain the business growth, the SBU has
started its new business in producing “e-learning”
products with multi-media and wireless applications.
In addition, the SBU will strive for building strong
partnership with external technology parties and
components suppliers in multi-media and wireless
communications areas, with an aim to develop unique
technology for our new products and maintain our
leading position in the market. In view of the increasing
importance in diversifying our sales channel, besides
selling our products through retail stores, the SBU will
invest more resources on promoting its products via
online shopping, TV direct sales and education
institutions in some overseas markets.

Despite various uncertainties and unstable business
environment in the mainland market, the SBU will
monitor the market closely and adopt appropriate
product and market strategies and branding plan. At
the same time, to cater for the expected high demand
for language products for coming 2008 Beijing Olympic
Game, the SBU will plan for the development of high
value-added language translation products and
communicators to grasp this good business opportunity
and enhance our brand image in China.
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Review

The SBU has experienced a considerable drop in sales
revenue and profit, despite that continuous growth
has been made in the financial year 2006-2007. The
slowdown has been the result of a decrease in sales of
electronic dictionaries to major customers who have
been encountering intense competition in the market.
Overall, the market growth has come to a halt.
Decrease in sales has been mainly in the area of
conventional electronic dictionary models, while the
business of high value added dictionaries with
distinctive features such as digital TV or high quality
TFT display has been performing quite satisfactorily
and become a major product line of the financial year.
In such business environment, the SBU has unshakably
continued its investment in researching and developing
new projects based on the SBU’s long term strategy
and requirements proposed by new customers.

In the non-dictionary categories, the SBU would
successfully launch new products such as eBook for
the China market, Bluetooth audio products for the
USA market, and would complete its research and
development project for the Japanese mobile phone
market. These new products are expected to contribute
larger sales revenue in the second half of the financial
year 2007-2008.

2007 4 #HE Annual Report
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Outlook

The difficult business environment is expected to
continue through the first half of the financial year
2007-2008, due to seasonal factors of the Japanese
electronic dictionary market and that the SBU is
focusing on developing new products for recouping
revenue in the second half of the financial year 2007-
2008. Intensive efforts are being made to launch new
distinctive products which are equipped with unique
features. These are expected to be the SBU’s new major
products line.

In order to capture the increasing number of new
business opportunities in Japan, the Group has set up
a subsidiary in Tokyo of Japan, for marketing and
developing new products. The operation has begun
since the end of March this year. Combined with the
SBU’s strength in product design and quality
manufacturing, and also its profound understanding
of business and Japanese customers, the Japan office
will play a major role in enhancing the partnership
with product distributors, technology/IP companies, and
network/contents service providers, etc., as well as
developing new businesses in Japan.

While the SBU continues its efforts in regaining the
market share of the Japanese electronic dictionary
market, new focus shall be brought to new categories
of products such as eBook for worldwide markets, and
mobile phone related products and vertical application
products for Japanese market, which are both unique
and profitable. Some of the new products will carry
our own brand in Japanese market. These new products
are expected to contribute to an increase in sales
revenue and profit in the second half of the financial
year 2007-2008. This will carry on in the following
years and bring to the SBU the next growth
momentum.
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Review

With the continuous development and wide application
of the wireless communication technology, the SBU
diversifies the product range from Smartphone to other
personal communication products. As such, the SBU
will change its name to Personal Communication
Products SBU starting from the new financial year.
Personal communication products are those electronic
products by which people could get in touch with
others or acquire information through wireless
communication technology. The products must be
equipped with personalized functions so as to suit
different types of consumers.

In this first half of the financial year 2006-2007, the
SBU has launched the first GPS product for car
navigation which is designed and manufactured for
European customers. In the second half of the financial
year 2006-2007, the SBU will launch new GPS products
which are solely developed by the SBU specially catering
for the Asian and China markets. For new products,
the SBU will focus on exploring WiFi technology, and
develop personal communication products that for
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voice, data and multimedia communication through
WiFi network. These include WiFi VolP Phone, WiFi
PMP which is specially designed for content providers,
and also WiFi data terminals which are used for
industrial applications. These new products are close
to the manufacturing stage, and are expected to be
marketed in the first quarter of the financial year 2007-
2008.

Outlook

Internet has brought enormous changes to humans’
lives, as well as immense business opportunities for
various industries. The
development of various wireless
communication networks
enables customers more ways to
connect to the internet to get
and share information, at
anytime, anywhere. Wireless
internet will bring colossal
business opportunities to the
industry. It is believed that in
the near future, most electronic
handheld products could
connect with the internet
through wireless network.

In the financial year 2007-2008,
the SBU will continue focusing on

developing personal communication products which
are able to connect to internet through WiFi network.
The characteristics of WiFi network are that the speed
is high, and the price is affordable. WiFi network is
suitable for multimedia broadcasting and sharing.
Watching movies or TV, sharing photos or video clips
through WiFi network will be the major features of
our new products. Also, the SBU will continue
developing WiFi VolP phone, so that customers could
handily use VolP services through WiFi network. The
applications of WiFi data terminal in various industries
are also another development direction of the SBU. In
the next one year, the SBU will continue searching for
collaborative partners, and launch into markets new
products through various channels.

The SBU has shifted its focus from the highly
competitive mobile phone market to the personal
communication market which is more variable and with
higher value added. This should better match the
capability of the SBU and will be conducive to its future
long-term development.
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Employees Relations

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group has on its payroll
262 (2006: 258) employees in Hong Kong and 3,674
(2006: 4,269) employees in the Mainland China,
representing an increase of about 1.6% and a decrease
of about 13.9% respectively as compared with prior
year. In addition to salary remuneration and usual fringe
benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, the Group also provides Share Incentive
Plans for executive directors and senior staff.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial
year, the Group’s management holds Planning Meetings
with its senior staff to review together the Group’s
past performance, as well as to discuss with them the
Group’s future strategic plans, policies and
developments. After publication of the Group’s results
announcement, staff communication sessions are held
to keep employees abreast of the Group’s
developments and also to facilitate two-way dialogue
between the management and all level of employees.
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Employees Relations (Continued)

The management actively communicates with
employees by means of “GSL SMS” through intranet,
staff newsletters and emails to ensure free flow of
information across different staff levels and to promote
information and experience sharing. All staff are
encouraged to express their views and feelings and to
propose suggestions on different aspects. Employee
satisfaction surveys are conducted regularly to help
the senior management gauge various concerns of the
staff and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly.
A team of managerial staff is elected regularly to have
a lunch gathering with the Group’s chairman. This
provides the staff an opportunity to engage in direct
dialogue with the senior management and strengthens
mutual trust and understanding. A good promotion
system is in place to identify the potential staff and
help employees prepare for their career prospects.

The Group has appointed a number of professional
training consultants to run workshops for improving
mid-level management executives’ problem solving
skills, communication skills and team spirit building
technique. Other in-house training programmes have
also been organized to continuously develop the
capabilities of all levels of the staff. Moreover,
employees are encouraged to take outside programmes
to acquire additional knowledge and upgrade their
skills. Staff may be nominated for attending selected
training schemes with full sponsorship. Employees who
are interested in other unselected courses may still
apply for the full or partial subsidies through the
Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.
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Employees Relations (Continued)

As to community services, the Group encourages its
employees to participate in various charitable events,
like Standard Chartered Marathon, Walk for Millions
— Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor and OBRIS

Pin Day, and raise fund for charity.

1ISO9001 and 1SO14001

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the
ISO9001 Quality Management System and 1SO14001
Environmental Management System have been
combined since 2000. On-site surveillance assessment
is conducted regularly by independent assessors to
ensure compliance and continual improvement. Internal
audit teams have been organised to perform
compliance audit on an on-going basis. The Group has
upgraded the environmental management system to
attain the new ISO14001:2004 standard.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance practices with a view
to protecting the interests of all of its shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
throughout the financial year ended 31st March, 2007
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) which came into
effect on 1st January, 2005, with deviation from the
first part of the first sentence of the code provision
E.1.2 of the Code as stated in the Company’s 2006/
2007 interim report.

Under the first sentence of the code provision E.1.2 of
the Code, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting and arrange for the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate,
to be available to answer questions at the annual
general meeting. Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the
chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th
September, 2006 due to other business engagement.
Dr. Tam has arranged the other members of the Board
and Remuneration Committee to attend the annual
general meeting and to be available to answer
guestions at the annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”) as its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial
year ended 31st March, 2007.

The Board

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises eleven
Directors, including seven executive Directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas (Managing Director), Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung,
Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung,
Judith; one non-executive Director namely Mr. Lo Chi
Chung, William; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, Mr.
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.
After taking into account of the relevant experience,
skill and knowledge of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith as
well as the contribution of Ms. Luk to the Group in
the past few years, Ms. Luk was appointed by the
Board as an executive director of the Company on 7th
June, 2007. Save as disclosed herein, during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2007, there has been
no change as to the composition of the Board.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of regular board meetings are served
to all Directors at least fourteen days before the
meetings to ensure that all Directors are given the
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent out to all Directors at least three
days in advance to ensure that all Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings. Draft minutes of board
meetings are circulated to all Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation. Minutes
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007,
four board meetings were held and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

HEEBRE
Number of
meetings attended

HITES Executive Directors

BEZATwt (FF) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) 3/4
BRE (EFHKE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4
EiEEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
KA E Kazuhiro Otani 2/4
5 I Lee Koon Hung 3/4
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James 4/4
BERA* Luk Chui Yung, Judith* T@EE N/A
FHITES Non-executive Director

EEIR Lo Chi Chung, William 2/4
BIKHITESE Independent non-executive Directors

BokHgsnz Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH 2/4
a7 B¥ AR Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 3/4
FT#®X Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4

* R-BELFEFALHEZHE -
Appointed on 7th June, 2007.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including
preparing and approving financial statements and
overseeing operational matters of the management.
Daily business operations and administration functions
are delegated to the management.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing Rules,
sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed with one of them has
appropriate accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Board has received annual
confirmation of independence from the independent
non-executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp. The relationship between Mr. Lee Koon
Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith is husband and
wife. Save for these relationships, there are no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Currently, the Company has set up five committees
including Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee, Executive Management
Committee and Share Option Committee. Each
committee is delegated with various responsibilities by
the Board in assisting the Board in the discharge of its
duties and to administer particular aspects of the
Group’s activities. Details of the role and function of
each committee are summarized below.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director are clearly segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual. The Chairman’s
principal responsibility is to manage the Board and the
Managing Director’s principal responsibility is to
manage the Company’s business. In particular, the
Chairman is responsible for the Group’s corporate
planning and financial management whereas the
Managing Director is responsible for the overall
marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s products.

Non-Executive Director

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive
Directors are fixed for a specific term, and shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996.
The Company has adopted terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1.3 of the Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive
Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing,
Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure in relation to remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Company. It
schedules to meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration of the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company and assessing
performance of executive Directors. In determining and
approving the remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee shall consider factors such as market
competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement and company and divisional profitability.

The Remuneration Committee has held two meetings
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2007 for
revising the salary package for executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, approving the
payment of result bonus for and grant of share options
to executive Directors and senior management of the
Company, and approving the annual remuneration of
non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The attendance of each
member is set out below:

HESBERE
Number of
meetings attended

BERAFHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 2/2
fa] [ B Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 2/2
F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 2/2
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The
Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance
with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mMH
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok
Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a
non-executive Director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include providing an independent and professional
advice on financial reporting, and evaluating the
effectiveness of internal control and the sufficiency of
external and internal audits.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007, the
Audit Committee has held four meetings to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted, discuss
and evaluate internal control procedures, risk
management and financial reporting matters. It also
ensures that the Group complies with all applicable
laws and regulations. The attendance of each member

is as follows:
HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended
AokHzngs Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH 3/4
o] B8 AR Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
EEIR Lo Chi Chung, William 4/4

ERZBEIRENBRAERE HEREFS
EHRLMBEFERSEIWBNEESRE -
VRAEEFSGEIXWME - RHHEREZESRETT
EHBE (S IERERALET/ DA R
T _FRY  BAKBPRHANETERRE
MERNETARNEFT  BEEMNERZESTE
HHTE'/\_)F&:I: °

2007 B 4 Annual Report

After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee will present a report to the
Board which highlights any significant issues discussed
in the meeting for the Board’'s information and
consideration. To assist the Audit Committee to carry
out its duties, the Process Improvement and Internal
Audit Sub-committee was formed in 2002 to provide
support to frontline functions in improving business
operations and performing internal audit. Internal audit
reports will be directly sent to the Audit Committee
periodically.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was established in
2001 to help Directors identify and assess business
risks. Corresponding strategies are formulated and risk
management system is implemented to prevent and
manage market and operational risks.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as
a general management committee under the authority
of the Board. Currently, the Executive Management
Committee comprises seven executive Directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman of the Executive
Management Committee), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr.
Lee Koon Hung and Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James and
Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith (appointed on 7th June,
2007).

Share Option Committee

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996
with written terms of reference to deal with issues
regarding any grant of share options under the
Company’s share option scheme. In any case, the grant
of the Company’s share options to any Director or his
associates requires the approval of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors. The Share Option
Committee comprises two executive Directors, Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman of the Share Option
Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year under review, the total remuneration in
respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s auditors are HK$1,550,000
and HK$100,000 respectively.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Preparation
of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s financial statements which
give a true and fair view. The statement of the auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on page 46 of the annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control
of the Group. The system of internal control is designed
to manage and eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-
committee was formed in 2002 to provide support to
frontline functions in improving business operations
and performing internal audit. A comprehensive policy
and standard governing the process improvement and
internal audit scope and workflow, authority and
integrity of the audit staff, was promulgated in
September 2006. Internal audit reports will be directly
sent to the Audit Committee periodically. After each
Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee will address the significant internal audit
findings for the Board's information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and
its subsidiaries which cover the review of risk
management functions, the Company’'s material
controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Board considered the internal control
system effective and adequate.
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Investor Relations

The Group always places emphasis on communicating
with investors and is committed to enhancing investor
relationship by increasing its transparency to the
investor community. Measures to keep investors
informed of the Group’s latest developments
comprehensively and timely include regular meetings,
presentations, posting of press release and
announcements on the Group’s website, visits to the
manufacturing plant and e-mail news updates.
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Executive Directors

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson Jp, aged 43, is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group.
He is responsible for the Group’s corporate planning
and financial management. He has been one of the
members of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since November 1996. He graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in Science and later was awarded the degree
of Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He received “The Young
Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” awarded by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in September 1992
and was awarded as one of the “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons” in November 1997. He is the Chairman
of Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council, the Deputy
Chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council, a
member of the Commission on Strategic Development,
the Vice Chairman of PRD Council of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and a member of The Hong Kong
— European Union Business Co-operation Committee.
He is the younger brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, the Managing Director of the Company and
the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 45, is the
Managing Director of the Company and one of the
founders of the Group. He is responsible for the overall
marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s products.
He has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over twenty-
two years of experience in marketing electronic
components and consumer electronic products. He
received “Advanced Technology Development Award”
of "Capital Magazine’s Outstanding Information
Technology and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August
2001. He is the elder brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company and the
brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an
Executive Director of the Company.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 39, is an
Executive Director of the Company. She joined the
Group in February 1992 and is responsible for human
resources management, administrative matters and
electronic publishing of the Group. She has been one
of the members of the Share Option Committee of the
Company since November 1996. She has obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s degree in Training and Human
Resource Management from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom, and has over seventeen years of
experience in management and administration. Mrs.
Tam is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the
Chairman of the Company and the sister-in-law of Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, the Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 46, joined the Company
as Executive Director in April 1997. He is responsible
for OEM/ODM business in the Strategic Product
Division, corporate business planning and corporate
sourcing strategy of the Group. He graduated from
the Kansai University of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan
with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Languages, and has
been working for a Japanese electronics company for
fourteen years before he joined the Group. He has
spent the latter ten years in the Hong Kong office of
this Japanese company since 1987, being responsible
for sales and marketing of electronic components such
as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 44, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in April 1998. He is responsible for the
personal communication products business of the
Group. He has been one of the members of the Share
Option Committee of the Company since April 2003.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Computer Science from Asia International Open
University and a Master of Science’s degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-three
years of experience in product development. He is the
husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, an Executive
Director of the Company.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 58, joined the
Company as Executive Director in April 1999. He is
responsible for the Group's strategic operations. He
holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering and a Master
of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong, and
a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the University of
London. He has thirty-seven years of experience in many
areas, including academic research, industrial research,
production management, product development,
consulting and strategic business development. Before
joining the Group, he served Hong Kong Productivity
Council for thirteen years as Divisional Manager of
Electronics Services Division, Branch Director of Design
and Automation Branch and finally as Deputy Executive
Director. He is a member of the Advisory Committee
on Electronic Engineering of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and the Executive Committee of
Manufacturing Enterprise Integration and Innovation
Association.

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 40, joined the
Group in 1989 and was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in June 2007. She is responsible for
the electronic dictionary business in the Electronic
Dictionary Division of the Group. She graduated from
the City University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma
in Business Management. She has eighteen years of
experience in marketing & sales of consumer electronic
products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an
Executive Director of the Company.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LO Chi Chung, William, aged 47, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company. He has been one
of the members of the Audit Committee of the
Company since April 2003. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He also holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group
in July 1993, Mr. Lo has worked for several major
international corporations including IBM and Siemens.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in November 1996 and resigned with effect
from April 2003 but remains as a Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is currently Group Senior
Director — Finance and Administration of Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel mH, aged 49, Certified
Financial PlannerCM, Registered Financial Consultant,
Chartered Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District
Director of American International Assurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited. He is also the Hong Kong and
Macau Chair of International Association of Registered
Financial Consultants. He was awarded the International
EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He joined the Company as Independent
Non-executive Director in January 1995 and has been
one of the members of the Audit Committee since
March 1999. He has over twenty-five years of
experience in insurance and received “The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Award” in November 1994.
He was the Chairman of The Outstanding Young
Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the President of The
Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong (1991), the
President of the General Agents and Managers
Association of Hong Kong (1995-1996), the Co-
Chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance Council
(1996-1997) and the International Committee Chairman
of GAMA International (1997-1999). He is a Council
Member of Kwai Tsing District Council. He is a Council
Member and a Co-Convenor of Independent Non-
executive Directors Committee of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He also sits in a number of non-
governmental organizations and Government
committees as either chairman or committee member.

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 47, is the director
of G2B Company Limited. He joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director in January 1995.
He has been the member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company
since November 1996 and March 1999 respectively.
He has obtained a Diploma in Journalism from the
Shue Yan University and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-four years of experience
in marketing consumer electronic products.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 43, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee in September
2004. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since January 2005. He
graduated from The University of Hawaii with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration majoring
in Accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
has over twelve years of experience in accounting and
auditing. At present, Mr. Wong is the Managing
Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.

Senior Management

Mr. Masakatsu TSUIJI, aged 69, is the Deputy
Managing Director — Manufacturing of the Group. He
has extensive experience in manufacturing of electronic
products such as personal computers and personal
digital assistants. Prior to joining the Group in July
1999, he worked for a famous Japanese electronics
company as a senior management staff for thirty-eight
years and has considerable overseas working experience
in United States, Korea and other Southeast Asian
countries.

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 49, is the Executive
Director, Marketing and Business Development of
Group Sense PDA Limited and Group Sense
Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries of the Group. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
University of East Asia. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2003, he has more than twenty years of
experience in marketing and manufacturing of
consumer electronic products.



EFREREEARG N (W)

#EE (BE)BMR2AF Group Sense (International) Limited 37

Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Cont'd)

BREEAR (W)

BORIRSEE - BT A6H - RAKE Y K EE
SEBRIEE  RBERRADEABAS - B
EFHERNBBLRM - REETREME
SHAMERZA T —FER - BR AN
FMAREE -

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 46, is the General
Manager of the Group’s Strategic Product Division. He
graduated from University of Birmingham, United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science. He has over twenty-one years of experience
in the field of electronics and computer products. He
joined the Group in 1993.
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The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2007.

Principal activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal associates and subsidiaries
are set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2007 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 48.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
amounting to HK$23,952,000 was paid to the
shareholders during the year. The directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders on the
register of members on Thursday, 23rd August, 2007,
amounting to approximately HK$29,940,000, and the
retention of the remaining profit of the Group as at
31st March, 2007 of HK$95,043,000.

Major customers and suppliers
For the year ended 31st March, 2007:

(i)  The Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 34% and
79%, respectively of the Group’s total revenue.

(i)  The Group’'s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 10% and
33%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases
(not including purchases of items which are of
capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none
of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital had any interest in the five largest customers
nor the five largest suppliers.
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Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold
improvement of approximately HK$1 million, furniture,
fixtures and equipment of approximately HK$2 million,
plant and machinery of approximately HK$2 million,
toolings and moulds of approximately HK$11 million
and motor vehicles of approximately HK$1 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 32
to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 March 2007, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$70,615,000, of which
HK$29,940,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year. In addition, the Company's share premium
account, in the amount of HK$409,705,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Directors and directors’ service contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson, Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)

Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Luk Chui Yung, Judith (appointed on 7th June, 2007)

Non-executive director:

Lo Chi Chung, William

Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel, MH
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Lee Koon
Hung, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel, mH and Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, who was newly appointed
by the board of Directors on 7th June, 2007, will also
retire from office in accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of
the Company’s Bye-laws and she will, being eligible,
offer herself for re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a
term of no more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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BREE ffaF1R2 29,000,000
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BEEE fitit1 2,300,000
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
AAME 2,000,000
Kazuhiro Otani
TRk 1,676,000
Lee Koon Hung
BER 2,900,000

Lo Chi Chung, William
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Independent non-executive directors

The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung
Wing Ki, Samuel, MH, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, an annual confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

Directors’ interests in securities

At 31st March, 2007, the interests of the Directors
and their associates in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
(the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

FEEBERROHE (FR)

er of ordinary shares held (long position)
FE#TRA
REER Hit ZBEAY
Family Other B % of issued
interests interests Total share capital
— 537,877,118 563,877,118 47.08
— 537,877,118 566,877,118 47.33
— 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
— — 2,000,000 0.17
550,000 — 2,226,000 0.19
— — 2,900,000 0.25
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Report of the Directors (Cont'd)

ESAcESHED (B

Mt

1. %537,877,118[ I {5 ¥9 LAEarnmill Holdings
Limitedz £ & &5 %2 8 #The Samson 1992
Trust% The Thomas 1992 Trusti% 18 [ Lt 7 & 48
EZX A © The Samson 1992 Trust/s — B 2
REET HE2EREXZAREEEREL
AKFm+t RIEEFEBRZZ LT o The Thomas
1992 TrustA—HEERERET  H2EREX
TAREERREEREEBERBH LT - &
BRELTATH+  BREEELTRERRELE
9 A Earnmill Holdings LimitedZ & % -

Mt

2. UEBREREBEREzELIATFaLtREERELEH
[+ A #920,000,0008& LD ©

BEEERRERBALHAARA ZELAR
D H I NMERRMEES -

BREXHBEEIN R-TTELF=A=1+—
B SEFARFIBEALIMBEEARAK
BEEMBERAR (ERRFHFRBAEKRM) 2
D REERDTRERETAEDRIORE -

BB E

BRAARBRESINBREGECRES
BEIN B S MR MIEE3T

EEMARMRRGZERN

BREXFEEEI  ARABHEEMKE QA
RAFREEERBEFELEMLHE BN
NRAEFARBARRRHEMAABE 2K
e fEsmERs -
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Directors’ interests in securities

(Continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of
Earnmill Holdings Limited, a company ultimately
beneficially owned by The Samson 1992 Trust and The
Thomas 1992 Trust in equal shares. The Samson 1992
Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson,
JP and Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (spouse of Mr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson, JP). The Thomas 1992 Trust is a
discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs.
Tam Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
being Directors, are directors of Earnmill Holdings
Limited.

Notes:

2. Included above is the 20,000,000 shares which are
jointly owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson, jp and Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The interests of the Directors and their associates in
the share options granted by the Company are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2007, none of
the Directors or their associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO.

Share options

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company'’s share
option schemes and valuation of options are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.



EFEEREE (B

%8 (BF)AR AT Group Sense (International) Limited /4 3

Report of the Directors (Cont'd)

ESERSNZEXESR

AABEEERARBRZ M B LR ARA
FREFREINAFAEARHEHILZERS
NP EERAHEEEEANED -

ME HEARODXLAFZLHES

& 3 fE

ARRREERHBRARREBEE
A E-i——ElJtﬁ?TB(iFEWEMﬁiE%E
Bl K 2 B fa] £ T 7E %5

FEBRE

RERBHFLHAEHRMEB6 GEMRILZEE
frREfE  RZEELF=-A=+—8 "
REXREEBETES 2RI TIKRR
ZHEARRAEEARFAEHITRATNER
KR

Directors’ interests in contracts of

significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed
securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company’s listed securities during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2007.

Substantial shareholders

At 31st March, 2007, the register of substantial
shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued
capital of the Company:

FEEERROBE (F8)

RRE®E

Name of shareholder

Earnmill Holdings Limited

BEESEERQA

Value Partners Limited

#5 8
Cheah Cheng Hye

HEBRITRAZAD
% of issued
share capital

Number of
ordinary shares held
(Long Position)

537,877,118 44 .91
(#7E —) (Note 1)

95,898,000 8.01
(K13 =) (Note 2)

95,898,000 8.01

(K13 =) (Note 2)

2007 B 4 Annual Report



A4 %S (ER)EMRAF Group Sense (International) Limited

EFEEREE (B

Report of the Directors (Cont'd)

EEBBRE(HE)
Bt -
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Substantial shareholders (Continued)
Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’
Interests in Securities” disclosed above.

2. Value Partners Limited is holding the 95,898,000 shares
as an investment manager. Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is
deemed to be interested in such shares through his
32.77% interest in Value Partners Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2007, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who
had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the SFO.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Public float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors throughout
the year ended 31st March, 2007.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors on terms no less exactly than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors have
complied with, the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31st
March, 2007.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel, MH
(Chairman), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris, and
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a non-executive
director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four
meetings with 93.75% attendance to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discuss internal control and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

Auditors

During the year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
resigned as auditors of the Company and Messrs. Ernst
& Young were appointed by the directors to fill the
casual vacancy so arising. There have been no other
changes of auditors in the past three years. A resolution
for the reappointment of Messrs. Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson, Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
18th July, 2007
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To the shareholders of
Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Group
Sense (International) Limited set out on pages 48 to
158, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31st March, 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st March, 2007 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
18th July, 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—EELHF —EER
2007 2006
b aF FET FAETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
A REVENUE 5 1,237,317 1,490,757
Fi=R=—9 0" Cost of sales (954,096) (1,189,637)
EF Gross profit 283,221 301,120
H At e A R Wz Other income and gains 5 26,621 43,322
HE XD AR Selling and distribution costs (54,942) (70,017)
TR H Administrative expenses (97,146) (100,071)
9% & B2 S Research and development expenses (74,224) (81,860)
E i H Other expenses (4,178) (15,087)
B & A AR Finance costs 7 (178) (1,136)
FEAE B & N B EE Share of losses of associates (1,393) —
B AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 77,781 76,271
18 Tax 10 (17,873) (21,880)
REERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 59,908 54,391
e @A) Attributable to:
RARREREA Equity holders of the Company 11 59,324 54,391
) G T Minority interests 584 —
59,908 54,391
®’E DIVIDENDS 12
B Interim 23,952 23,952
BN Proposed final 29,940 35,928
53,892 59,880
RKATEER EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
BREFEA TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
EHtERER OF THE COMPANY 13
HA CEM) Basic (HK cents) 5.0 4.5
B3E ) Diluted (HK cents) 5.0 4.5

2007 B # 4 Annual Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R_EZ+HF=—A=+—H
At 31st March, 2007

—EELHF —EER
2007 2006
iikz3 FHET FAETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BER&E Property, plant and equipment 14 102,856 106,125
FERHEERRE Prepaid lease payments 15 8,976 8,635
i A B 2 B AR Deferred development costs 16 6,774 7,164
i RN e Interests in associates 18 9,024 4
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 19 26,209 27,984
TR ITEE E Deferred tax assets 29 — 300
RHZ® Long term deposits 20 3,490 3,960
IEMENE EBEE Total non-current assets 157,329 154,172
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 170,899 181,483
FEULE 5 BR 3K Trade receivables 23 163,706 182,918
ERRE EE2k Prepayments, deposits
H U AR 5K and other receivables 24 51,772 44,152
JE Ui Bt 28 R B BR 3R Amounts due from associates 18 1,549 3,868
EAFEERA Investments at fair value
BakokE through profit or loss 21 41,211 40,740
RekBeEEER Cash and cash equivalents 25 272,885 247,607
MEEERTE Total current assets 702,022 700,768
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JENE BIEFRRENZE  Trade and bills payables 26 166,826 183,843
Hib B IR EFTAE  Other payables and accruals 27 56,342 58,459
FERF R Tax payable 25,005 11,406
M ERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 28 — 608
mME B EERE Total current liabilities 248,173 254,316
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 453,849 446,452
EEHER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 611,178 600,624
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FEREARE (W)

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

R_EZ+HF=—A=+—H
At 31st March, 2007

—EELHF —EERF
2007 2006
b aF FET FAETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 2,008 776
BEEFE Net assets 609,170 599,848
% #E EQUITY
AARRERFEA Equity attributable to equity
FEAE IR R holders of the Company
BEITRA Issued capital 30 119,761 119,761
R Reserves 32(a) 457,998 443,312
EEARBRE Proposed final dividend 12 29,940 35,928
607,699 599,001
LHRRER Minority interests 1,471 847
g F ok Total equity 609,170 599,848
EREEEtATat EBEREERE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
E E
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

%8 (BF)EMR AT Group Sense (International) Limited 5§

457,998,000/ 7T (ZZEZ /X4 : 443,312,0008

t)

ARAREREARS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Rt B% g% EiRD B3 2 |
BRARE  REE RREGE RERE KHEE BE  REEN  AERE B RREE RELE
Share Share  Capital Exchange Proposed
Issued ~ premium option redemption  Special fluctuation  Retained final Minority Total
capital  account”  reserve’  reserve’  reserve’ reserve’  profits' dividend Total interests equity
ik Tir  Fir TEr  TEn Tér  TArn  TEx  ThEn  TEr ThErn TiErn
Notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
(H#30)  (Wa30)  (B#32) (B#32)
(note 30)  (note 30)  (note 32) (note 32)
RZSZREME-B At Tt Aprl, 2005 120366 412,062 — 419 (60,819) 1374 95,100 36,110 604,612 829 605441
EXE5I R A Exchange realignment and
REMEEER total income and expense
BARRER recognised directly in equity - - - - - 1,765 - - 1,765 18 1783
RERRF Profit for the year - - — — — — 54,391 - 54,391 - 54,391
REENER Total income and expense
Fqut:t] for the year - - - - - 1765 54391 — 56,156 18 56,174
HE-HEBAT Disposal of a subsidiary 3 - - - - - m - - m - m
BLAMEEAE - Share options exercised,
RRHEAZH net of share issue expense 30 4 4 - - - - - - 8 - 8
R ERREE Repurchase and cancellation
of shares 30 (609) (2,361) - - - - - - (2,970) - (2,970)
HRERHZ Equity-settled share option
BrakEzs arrangements 31 - - 1,085 - - - - - 1,085 - 1,085
RERBHS Final 2005 dividend paid - - — - — - — (36,1100 (36,110) - (36,110)
BRZZTRERERE Interim 2006 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - (399 - B39 - (3%
ZEERFREARERE Proposed final 2006 dividend 12 - - - - - — (3598 35928 - - -
RZFE/E At 315t March, 2006
ZAzt-H 119,761 409,705 1,085 419 (60,819) 331 89,611 35,928 599,001 847 599,848
RZEEREMA-RA At 1st April, 2006 119,761 409,705 1,085 49 (60,819) 331 89,611 35928 599,001 847 599,848
EXESIRYE Exchange realignment and
kxEEEER total income and expense
BIRRER recognised directly in equity - - - - - 8,539 - - 8,539 40 8,579
REERA Profit for the year - - - - - - 59,324 - 59,324 584 59,908
REEHER Total income and expense
3H8E for the year - - - - — 859 593 - 61883 64 68487
NREXNZEL Equity-settled share option
RREZH arrangements 31 - - 715 - - - - - 715 - 715
BRHZEEAERHRE Final 2006 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - — (35928 (35928 - (3592)
BRZESLERBRE Interim 2007 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - (23952 - (2395 - (2395%)
“EELERERHURE Proposed final 2007 dividend 12 - - - - - — (29940 29,940 - - -
it 3 242
=ZA=t-8 At 31st March, 2007 119,761 409,705 1,800 419 (60,819) 11,850 95,043 29,940 607,699 14711 609,170
* ZEREROENGAERERBRZEAHKME * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated

reserves of HK$457,998,000 (2006: HK$443,312,000)

in the consolidated balance sheet.
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HFeRaeRBE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—ETLEE —EERF
2007 2006
Bt aF FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
75 A A Profit before tax 77,781 76,271
E Adjustments for:
B & KA Finance costs 7 178 1,136
FE (R H & 1 A Share of losses
518 of associates 1,393 —
RITH B A Bank interest income 5 (10,489) (4,750)
BEAFEERZA Interest income from investments
BRio®REZ at fair value through profit
FEMA or loss 5 (2,684) (2,229)
A HERE 2R BRA Dividend income from
an available-for-sale investment 5 (1,440) —
HEME BEREBESE Loss/(gain) on disposal of items
HE GAEWHERIN) of property, plant and
ZEB () - FE equipment (other than a
leasehold property), net 6 (188) 702
HE-—HEWE 22 KW= Gain on disposal of a leasehold
property 5 — (19,375)
HE—MWBRA W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 5 — (789)
BEAFEERZA Fair value losses/(gains) on
BREZKEZLAYF investments at fair value
BEEE, (k)  FE through profit or loss, net 56 a71) 2,265
e Depreciation 6 29,203 23,952
BERNEERE LR Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 6 251 223
i 3 5 B K AN 3R Amortisation of deferred
development costs 6 3,818 7,344
iR RE 57 2% K AN R (B Impairment of deferred
development costs 6 — 3,500
B & N B OB E Impairment of interests
in associates 6 3,928 2,822
JEWE SRR R Impairment of trade and
E b JE U BR FRORVE other receivables 6 330 2,710
FERE Provision for inventories 6 16,067 39,841
At HE —RERE Impairment of an
available-for-sale investment 6 — 10,000
MR ER—R R Waiver of an amount due from
AP ERNCIE L a fellow subsidiary 6 — 664
AR 1t 2 B4k Equity-settled share option
AR 37 expense 6 715 1,085
EEESEHA 2 Operating profit before
45 5 A working capital changes 118,392 145,372
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FEeEBEeREE (8)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
Bt aF FET FAETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
JFE Ui Bt 2 B BR 3K Decrease/(increase) in amounts

B (3 an) due from associates (1,609) 7,413
7 &8 Increase in inventories (5,483) (32,089)
JEWE B BRI Decrease/(increase) in trade

(38 ) receivables 20,961 (99,617)
ERFIE - Zek Increase in prepayments, deposits

E b JfE Uy BR SR8 N and other receivables (10,624) (8,056)
BAFERA Increase in investments at fair value

Bamik ZIEELI through profit or loss — (34,019)
FERE BERAKRENZE Increase/(decrease) in trade and

o, Ort2) bills payables (17,017) 15,091
HiEBAERERR Decrease in other payables

EsraERL and accruals (2,117) (1,244)
B ELS, (M)  Cash generated from/(used in)

ZRE operations 102,503 (7,149)
ERNEERNGEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (2,380) —
B8N TR Overseas taxes paid (362) —
BEEBCHERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

() RE operating activities 99,761 (7,149)
REXBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
B A Interest received 10,489 4,750
BRFERLA Interest received from investments

BakiskEZ at fair value through

F 2 WA profit or loss 2,684 2,229
At ERE 2 KRB WA Dividend income from an

available-for-sale investment 1,440 —
BAME BER Purchases of items of property,

HEEIEE plant and equipment 14 (21,277) (36,913)
HEME - BER Proceeds from disposal of items

REEIRE 2SR of property, plant and equipment 750 106,112
0 AT A B K AR Additions to deferred development

costs 16 (3,428) (9,204)
HEHEEREZ Proceeds from disposal of

Fr8 38 available-for-sale investments 1,775 —
HE—MBAF Disposal of a subsidiary 33 — 189
g iR /N Acquisition of an associate (10,413) (4)
H b JfE U BR TR Decrease in other receivables 3,488 5,000
REEBRHERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

() ZE investing activities (14,492) 72,159
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—EELF —EERF
2007 2006
Bt aF FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXB2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
B & A A Finance costs (178) (1,136)
2R E Dividends paid (59,880) (60,062)
BLBERERND Proceeds from issue of
2 s sRIE ordinary shares — 8
L i AR A% 10 BE Repurchase of ordinary shares — (2,970)
EEIFETEXK Repayment of bank loans — (25,755)
=W EZCFER D Net decrease in trust receipt loans — (10,887)
REXKzRE Net cash outflow from financing
ik ek activities (60,058) (100,802)
ReRALEEERAZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
#®m/ GRd) FE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,211 (35,792)
FMcBHe Rk Cash and cash equivalents at
ReEEER beginning of year 246,999 282,400
ONISTE R4S % - JFRE  Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 675 391
FRZEAER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReEEEHR AT END OF YEAR 272,885 246,999
ReRkBRELEHEER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
HEERDN AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He MIR1TE Cash and bank balances 25 66,594 36,608
BARBLR=ZEAR Non-pledged time deposits with
BB 2 FEH A original maturity of less than
EHER three months when acquired 25 206,291 210,999
RITEX Bank overdrafts 28 — (608)
272,885 246,999
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—EELHF —EER
2007 2006
iok:a FHET FAETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
B~ 5 HE = Interests in subsidiaries 17 573,674 610,884
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JFE W BT B8 B BR 3K Due from subsidiaries 17 29,940 35,928
FENRFIE - Zek Prepayments, deposits and
E b i U BR 53X other receivables 162 458
Be NIBITHE S Cash and bank balances 25 78 67
ME)E EATE Total current assets 30,180 36,453
FEBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEEMEZRNRESA{E  Other payables and accruals 468 374
FEAS B IR Tax payable 1,086 —
BB EAE Total current liabilities 1,554 374
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 28,626 36,079
BEEFE Net assets 602,300 646,963
B R EQUITY
B EITRA Issued capital 30 119,761 119,761
k=] Reserves 32(b) 452,599 491,274
BEAERE Proposed final dividend 12 29,940 35,928
% #E 42 2R Total equity 602,300 646,963
EREEEtATat EBEREERE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
E £
Director Director
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

1. LFEH

BE (BER)ARARE —HRNAFREZM
RIZZ2BRRAT - ARAZETBEEME
MREFAEMALDHEAMBRREAER
TSR N EE6HE -

TR AEEZEBS LR - BHERE
EXREELETER TER/RETHA
B FHIEAABIBEIE - REERAR
SHEE (RERFTEE]) Em -

2.1 IREE

HEMBHRRIDREFZESHMASRM
CEEMBHRELEN([EEMBREE
A1) (R eREEEestER ([HE G
EADRBRE)  BFELAREARINE
BRARGHIZEBEREMGRE - KETR
BURTFEREN  ZEFBRRIDRE
ERAEmE - ZFEMBHHRERIG LTI
B BRBEAN  MESHELOARER
g ToT e

2.1

Corporate information

Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company

Group Sense (International)

incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 6th Floor,
Building 9, No. 5 Science Park West Avenue, Hong
Kong Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
design, manufacture and sale of a range of
electronic handheld products, primarily electronic
dictionaries, smartphones and personal digital
assistants, and manufacture of original design
manufacturing (“ODM") products.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
certain investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

21 REEEGE)
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Bk o M AR 2 4 mUE R B
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EAAEFEER 2 RRCAEIEL
BAENEZERH—H - AKREARNMERR
BZEAR S REBRRERE L -

MBARZKWBEEREREEFHEAR -
W75 W R E TS A B 2 AR 2 BL 2 Pl
BrREBRcEEZ A FERERKER
HiFfAfE s B EREARE - WEAAA
BHEEEATE SHTRETIAINRR
BEHmELESRECARN EBBEKE
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2007.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting. This
method involves allocating the cost of the
business combinations to the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders not held by the Group in
the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.
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ZEe)—RERTH [ERREENHrRE]
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2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’'s financial statements. Except for in certain
cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting
policies and additional disclosures, the adoption
of these new and revised standards and
interpretation has had no material effect on these
financial statements.

HKAS 21 Amendment  Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment  Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment  The Fair Value Option

HK (IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease
HK (IFRIC) - Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

22 FRETREBIIZERMBREE

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong

Rlzf& (|
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Rt &
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Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

The principal changes in accounting policies are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21
Amendment regarding a net investment in
a foreign operation, all exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in a separate
component of equity in the consolidated
financial statements irrespective of the
currency in which the monetary item is
denominated. This change has had no
material impact on these financial
statements as at 31st March, 2007 or 31st
March, 2006.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

(i) Amendment for financial guarantee
contracts

This amendment has revised the scope
of HKAS 39 to require financial
guarantee contracts issued that are not
considered insurance contracts, to be
recognised initially at fair value and to
be remeasured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue. The adoption
of this amendment has had no material
impact on these financial statements.
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2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(b) HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
(Continued)

(i) Amendment for cash flow hedge
accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39
to permit the foreign currency risk of
a highly probable intragroup forecast
transaction to qualify as a hedged item
in a cash flow hedge, provided that
the transaction is denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into
that transaction and that the foreign
currency risk will affect the
consolidated income statement. As the
Group currently has no such
transactions, the amendment has had
no effect on these financial
statements.

(iii) Amendment for the fair value
option

This amendment has changed the
definition of a financial instrument
classified as fair value through profit
or loss and has restricted the use of
the option to designate any financial
asset or any financial liability to be
measured at fair value through the
income statement. The Group had not
previously used this option, and hence
the amendment has had no effect on
the financial statements.
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Rlzf& (|

() EER(BBRUBRERBEES) —
REFMS RE-RZHEREGESH
g

AEEER _TTNFOHA—BEM®A
weklE BT -AREEReR
BRBESEARNEER M
5l REBEDREZZREET - &%
BrzETRZHHEEHE  MAE
BEREBESSERE175HRHEE]
BHETRIE - A - RZREY
MBERRUBEATE -

(d EFE(BEBRMBEBREREEES) —
REEIS EATBEERE295
(EBRREBAUBHREINEINST KX

ZRBERIAER - ERBEEEED
EEBZRERITFESRERKR &
ZREBRBERRTELESEBIR
B RREBEBREESEER
F2OMBMHE P EIHRE 2 2 WA E
REB G ERE 295 2 RERMIE
5l - MR AKEREY BHEZFLEHE
R TR FERZE - HRIERTHE

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

The Group has adopted this interpretation
as of 1st April, 2006, which provides
guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease
accounting must be applied. The Group has
determined based on this interpretation that
certain arrangements of the Group
contained leases and accordingly, the Group
has treated them in accordance with HKAS
17 Leases. However, the adoption of this
interpretation has had no material impact
on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7
Restatement

Applying the
Approach under
HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

This interpretation has provided guidance
on how to apply the requirements of HKAS
29 in a reporting period in which an entity
identifies the existence of hyperinflation in
the economy of its functional currency,
when that economy was not
hyperinflationary in the prior period, and
the entity therefore restates its financial
statements in accordance with HKAS 29. As
the Group currently has no operations under
such economies, this amendment has had
no effect on these financial statements.
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2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but
are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment  Capital Disclosures
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2007. The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group’s objective, policies and processes for
managing capital; quantitative data about what
the Company regards as capital; and compliance
with any capital requirements and the
consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2007. The
standard requires disclosures that enable users
of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments and also incorporates
many of the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32.
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2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2009. The
standard requires the disclosure of information
about the operating segments of the Group, the
products and services provided by the segments,
the geographical areas in which the Group
operates, and revenues from the Group’s major
customers. This standard will supersede HKAS 14
Segment Reporting.

HKAS 23 (Revised), HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int
9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009,
1st May, 2006, 1st June, 2006, 1st November,
2006, 1st March, 2007 and 1st January, 2008,
respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that the adoption of the HKAS 1
Amendment, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 may result in
new or amended disclosures. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact
of the other new and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly
or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the
venturers stipulates the capital contributions of
the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint
venture entity and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits
and losses from the joint venture’'s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared
by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Joint ventures (Continued)
A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture; or

(b) an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly
or indirectly, generally not less than 20%
of the joint venture’s registered capital and
is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary,
in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of
the Group's interests in associates. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of interests in
associates, rather than as a separately identified
asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is so allocated:

o represents the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes; and
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

° is not larger than a segment based on either
the Group’s primary or the Group’s
secondary reporting format determined in
accordance with HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, however not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the
Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

() the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group;
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(d) the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (c); or

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can
be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or
as a replacement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis

to write off the cost of each item of property,

plant and equipment to its residual value over its

estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings lease terms and 2%

Leasehold improvements ~ 25%

Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 25%
Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Tooling and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each balance sheet date.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income
statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on clearly-defined projects
to develop new products is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised
using the straight-line basis over the estimated
commercial lives of the underlying products of
three years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor
are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the leasehold land and building as
a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include the financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Gains or losses on investments held
for trading are recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity securities that are designated as available
for sale or are not classified in any of the other
two categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is included in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within
the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance
sheet date. For investments where there is no
active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation
models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the
asset is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that
the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of an
invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when
they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report



= & M 35 8 = b EE (88)

%8 (BF)AMR AT Group Sense (International) Limited /9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

24 FESHHEKREE (8)

M EERE (&)
A &R A E

mAaTtHEBEERRRE Al -FHEY
ERGEREZRGR BEA/REEZK
R (R EM AR R #HE) BEERHQ
FEZEHZER  BAREZER P ER
ZAEIBERRE © 5 R HH SRR 2K
ATAZBEBRITEEBKDZRED -

MEHTENAFEEMAIERLEESE
AHERBEBRENKRERERRELEZSE
- EHFETAZAEEEEBBEaRE
g o

BHRRAMBEE

MHEE (R (WER) —BMBEEL —
Mo —ARBEMEEEN—&2) E T
BIT K BUE R

o WEHZBEEBEEMBRESAE ZENL
EEm

o AKERBUBZBEEMSHEER
EZ2EN BAREBE-RIBEBIR
B ERBBREREZBAT - 9A
AREMNEEAERF=ZTNRZE
=17

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its
cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the
income statement, is transferred from equity to
the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the income statement.

Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the income statement, if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of
a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing bank borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and
interest-bearing bank borrowings are initially
stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of
HKAS 39 are accounted for as financial liabilities.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial guarantee contract, except when
such contract is recognised at fair value through
profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on past experience and best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement,
or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have
been rendered;
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been
established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in note 31 to
the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award
(the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification,
which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards
and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled
awards granted after 7th November, 2002 that
had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those
granted on or after 1 April 2005.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 14% of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

(a) Impairment losses/allowances
(i) Non-financial assets

The Group has to exercise judgement
in determining whether an asset is
impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer
exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of
impairment, including the amounts
and timing of future cash flows, the
discount rate or growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the
impairment test.
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3. EESrHER & () 3. Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)
¥ (&) Judgements (Continued)
(a) HEEE #HBEH#) (a) Impairment losses/allowances
(Continued)
(i) Z=@EE — BHXREWRERN (i) Financial assets - Loans and receivables

AEE 2 BERR (BREEKE
SRR REMERIER - AR
e B 2 2R BR ) 2R E R 1R
VA SY 1 & 0 FE U B 5K 2 AT e ]
HERERRD T REEE 2 A
REEMEE - FEFRK
RRCREKERTEEMA T
RENHE  BRENEER
BESFEFPKEFIRMNLE
HWAEKREEP 2 W HARRE
£ BEHHEHIMNENHERR
55 - RIABEZRE L BRINESE -

The impairment loss of the Group’s
receivable balances (including trade
and other receivables, and amounts
due from associates) is determined
based on the evaluation of the
collectibility and aging analysis of each
receivable and on management’s
judgements. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of the receivable,
including the current creditworthiness
and the past repayment history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of
debtors of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their abilities to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.
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3. EESrHER & () 3. Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)
¥ (&) Judgements (Continued)
(a) HEEE #HBEH#) (a) Impairment losses/allowances
(Continued)
(i) =HEE — JHRHERE (iii)  Financial assets — Available-for-sale
investments

RAFEEHECEREEMS - For available-for-sale financial assets,
MREQNFEREMRFTEL a significant or prolonged decline in
BREKEK  FEREEFLR fair value below cost is considered to
BrEEER REETRER be an objective evidence of
TEHEHREMWSIFES T %K - impairment. Judgement is required
HEL HIE - PED 2 ER when determining whether a decline
EEMBEBZBAEER - B in fair value has been significant or
LEEREZEBREEZRE - K prolonged. In making this judgement,
SETEERAEMREAE - 1T the historical data on market volatility
XREARBAREBEZETA as well as the price of the specific
LB E R o investment are taken into account. The

Group also considers other factors,
such as industry and sector
performance and financial information
regarding the issuer.
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
(b) Deferred development costs

During the year, the Group incurred
expenditure on projects to develop new
products. The expenditure is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale, its intention
to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Management of the Group reviews its
projects and assesses the technical feasibility
of completing the projects, the ability to
use or sell the assets being developed, and
the amounts and timing of future economic
benefits, on a project-by-project basis at
each balance sheet date. Judgements are
required to evaluate these attributes, and
determine the capitalisation and
amortisation of deferred development costs
of the Group.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report



FEMBEHRERMME (E)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE-_ZTTLF=R=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

3.

FESH PR &5 ()
¥ ()
(c) FE#

ERERETMERBERGRANRSE T
R B2 BEBREERIE T EREXRH
B - AEBERENERH ZHBEHE
& WHBHELNREARE - AEX
HZHBEETAETHERERBMN
SRARBENN ) -

#EE (BE)BMR2AF Group Sense (International) Limited 97

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(c)

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions
are required in determining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions s
reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.
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REBEA 2T ARBRERAE R
A R HEHERERERER ZE
MER - HEFREREZREFE
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment allowances on loans and
receivables

The Group regularly reviews its trade and
other receivables (including the amounts due
from associates) to assess impairment. In
determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement,
the Group considers whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from an individual receivable
balance, or a portfolio of trade and other
receivables (of similar characteristics). This
evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of a customer,
or customers in a group, or national or local
economic conditions. Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience
for customers with similar credit risk
characteristics, and objective evidence of
impairment when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and
timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.
To the extent that the net present value of
estimated cash flows differs from previous
calculation, the impairment allowances
estimated would be changed.
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment provision on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the
Group’s inventory items at each balance
sheet date, and makes provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items that are
no longer suitable for use in production.
Management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and work in
progress based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at each balance
sheet date and makes provision for obsolete
items. If the market conditions were to
deteriorate, resulting in a decrease in the
net realisable value of the Group's inventory
items, additional provision may be required.

Impairment test of non-financial assets

The Group determines whether an asset is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the
asset or the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. A change in the estimated future cash
flows and/or the discount rate applied will
result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report



100 #%= (B%E)HERAT Group Sense (International) Limited

FEMBEHRERMME (E)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

3.

FEE ARG &)

fhst 2 T HE £ ()

(d) HFAATRLEEREZAFE

—%imE AFEGFBEENE
DREERHEREReRMIACERK
TS ERMEL &S - AR
NI EHRABEZFERA ISR
B BAZHLBMIAMS  BRZH
BoE_TEG LHREZENZIE
tmﬁﬁlﬁ&ﬁilﬂvﬁuiﬁ

EEE Y BT AT - BEE
m E%ﬁ%ﬁ@°l%’ﬁ%lﬂ
Z@ﬁ@ﬁ#%%%ﬁﬁm% HHE
MEEZMETETE i RF
BTV RSERERACERER -
WEAERARKREEZAIZBREBL
BIZ - IRAREZBEH AT HZEE
ARBHEZAFEELEERYE - M
BBRAFEGAFCEEEZ  Z1EG
TRl RE M EE AT - TAKIKR
RAEFE - NEB 2 IFELTRER
ER-_TT+FE-A=+—HZEMA
R {E 526,094,000 7t (ZTZT X
4 127,869,000/ L) ° #E— 1B
EAN R e R

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Estimation of fair value of available-for-
sale investments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective
in nature, and are made as of a specific
point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. Where available, the
most suitable measurement for fair value is
the quoted market price. In the absence of
organised secondary markets for most
financial instruments, and in particular for
unlisted equity instruments and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of unquoted equity instruments,
direct market prices are not available. The
fair value estimate of such instruments was
therefore calculated on the basis of well-
established valuation techniques using
current market parameters. In particular, the
fair value estimate is a theoretical value
applicable at a given reporting date, and
hence can only be used as an indicator of
value realisable in future sales. Changes in
assumption used could significantly affect
these estimates and the resulting fair values.
If the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be
reasonably assessed, the instrument shall be
measured at cost. The net carrying amount
of the Group’s unlisted equity investments
at 31st March, 2007 was HK$26,094,000
(2006: HK$27,869,000). Further details are
contained in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual
values of items of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is
based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed, at each financial year end date
based on changes in circumstances.
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f)

Useful lives of deferred development
costs

Development costs are capitalised in
accordance with the accounting policy for
research and development costs in note 2.4
to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions
regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to
be applied and the expected period of
benefits.

In determining the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation expenses for its
deferred development costs, the Group has
to consider various factors, such as the
expected usage or sale of products, the
expected technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in products, and the
experience of the Group with similar
products that are used or sold in a similar
way. Additional or less amortisation is made
if the estimated useful lives are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives are
reviewed at each financial year date on
changes in circumstances.

At 31st March, 2007, the carrying amount
of capitalised development costs was
HK$6,774,000 (2006: HK$7,164,000).
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying value
of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses at 31st March, 2007 was
HK$417,000 (2006: HK$72,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31st
March, 2007 was HK$87,909,000 (2006:
HK$96,742,000). Further details are
contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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Segment information

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment
reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on
a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured
and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of
the business segments are as follows:

(@) the electronic handheld products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
electronic handheld products; and

(b) the ODM products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products.

In determining the Group’s geographical
segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers,
and assets are attributed to the segments based
on the location of the assets.
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Segment information (Continued)

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit

and certain asset, liability and expenditure

information for the Group’s business

segments for the years ended 31st March,

2007 and 2006.

g R # et

ETER LEER GefE
Electronic

BZ-ZZ+tF Year ended handheld ODM
ZA=t-HLEE 31st March, 2007 products products  Consolidated
FER FER FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEBA Segment revenue:

HETHREP Sales to external customers 779,628 457,689 1,237,317
PEEE Segment results 62,066 6,380 68,446
M RRSWA Interest and dividend income

RADEKE and unallocated gains 15,084
KPR Unallocated expenses (4,178)
BEKA Finance costs (178)
B2 DA EE Share of losses of associates (1,393)
8 Profit before tax 77,781
HE Tax (17,873)
KEERN Profit for the year 59,908
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4. HBTEH (W)

(a) %#H5E (H)

BZ-2Z+E
ZA=t-HILEE

AERAE
HuEAE
BEATEE
B 2 IR
UL ERE
BOFERA
BEEZRE
RFEAE
azem
HBER
BB

ELREAR
AAERRE

BaE
RnBER

TEREH
ROEHE

BARX
RAEERFX

HENE  BER

RETHEA 2

FEREB

ERESHEAREM

JE MR AR B

4. Segment information (Continued)

(a)

Year ended
31st March, 2007

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Interests in associates
Amounts due from associates
Available-for-sale investments
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information:
Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Provision for inventories
Impairment of trade and
other receivables

gt
EFEMR
Electronic
handheld
products
FE
HK$'000

331,902

172,462

22,321

19,458

(123)
14,267

330

ReER
tEEm

ODM
products

TER
HK$°000

170,105

46,840

7,631

4,067

(65)
1,800

Business segments (Continued)

Consolidated
FERT
HK$’000

502,007
9,024
1,549

26,209

41,211
279,351

859,351

219,302
25,005
2,008
3,866

250,181

29,952
3,320

33,2712

23,525
1,180

24,705

(188)
16,067

330
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4. HBTEH (W) 4.

(a) %% %E (5)

Segment information (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

£t RE&E
ETER YEEM RAEE
Electronic
HE-ZZRF Year ended handheld 0DM
ZA=T-RALEE 31st March, 2006 products products  Consolidated
FETL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUBA Segment revenue:

HETHIREP Sales to external customers 851,022 639,735 1,490,757
ik E Segment results 38,885 26,466 65,351
HMERREWA Interest and dividend income

RADEKE and unallocated gains 27,143
FARS Unallocated expenses (15,087)
BERK Finance costs (1,136)
A1 Profit before tax 76,271
WA Tax (21,880)
KEERR Profit for the year 54,391
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4. HEEH (&) 4. Segment information (Continued)

() EXK2EE (a) Business segments (Continued)

gt RIFRE

ETER YEER REBE
Electronic
HE-ZTSRE Year ended handheld 0DM
ZA=T-RALEE 31st March, 2006 products products  Consolidated
FAT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERBE Assets and liabilities
PHEEE Segment assets 301,990 232,325 534,315
HENEER Interests in associates 4
AN ERE Available-for-sale investments 27,984
ERERELAE Deferred tax assets 300
BATEZA Investments at fair value
BRRkZRE through profit or loss 40,740
FOREE Unallocated assets 251,597
EELE Total assets 854,940
AEER Segment liabilities 128,001 113,598 241,599
FERHBRR Tax payable 11,406
EEREEE Deferred tax liabilities 776
AORER Unallocated liabilities 1,311
BEf Total liabilities 255,092
HtpBER Other segment information:
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 24,317 7,202 31,519
BERRAX Capital expenditure 34,539 11,578 46,117
REERNER Impairment of deferred
BERERAR ZRE development costs recognised
in the income statement 3,500 — 3,500
HENE BRER Loss on disposal of items of
REEECER property, plant and equipment 702 — 702
FERE Provision for inventories 34,641 5,200 39,841
EWE ZEFR Impairment of trade and
HiEYRZ ZRE other receivables 2,710 — 2,710
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4. HEEH (&) 4. Segment information (Continued)

(b) HESHE (b) Geographical segments
TREWAEERBE_ZZTLFR The following tables present revenue and
ZEERF-A=T—HLEFEZH certain asset and expenditure information
EA2EMNRARETEERSILE for the Group’s geographical segments for
B the years ended 31st March, 2007 and

2006.
i
gR R EHEE LEM B TR i GEEE
Other
Mainland Asian North Middle
Hong Kong China  markets  America Europe East Others Consolidated

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEx
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BE-3ELEZR Year ended 31st March,

ST-ALEE 2007

ARRA: Segment revenue:

HETNAEP Sales to external customers 114597 29350 937330 44762 87986 23292 - 3131
A EER Other segment information:

AREE Segment asses 558,020 301,117 214 - - - — 859,351
BERY Capital expenditure 5418 19,287 - - - - - W05
HE-Z5/EZ5 Year ended 31t March,

ST-ALEE 2006

AERA: Segment revenue:

HETHREF Sales to external customers 139606 4714 1231376 47630 14230 14679 522 1490757
A RER Other segment information;

PREE Segment assets 601314 253415 21 - - - — 854,940
BERY Capital expenditure 18927 219 = - - - - 17
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5. ItA s Htlr A R 2 5. Revenue, other income and gains
WARERAEENEXE  IFRE N
EEMNEREBEFEREZRERR SN
MEBEE -

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts
during the year.

WA~ B A RWER DT -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains

is as follows:
—EELEHF ZEER
2007 2006
k=3 FET FAETT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Revenue
HEEBY Sale of goods 1,237,317 1,490,757
Hib A Other income
AR 7% & W A Service fee income 5,270 10,625
RITH B A Bank interest income 10,489 4,750
BRAFERZA Interest income from
BmiR2H B A investments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,684 2,229
AHEERE Dividend income from an
A B A available-for-sale investment 1,440 —
EAth Others 6,001 5,554
25,884 23,158
U 2% Gains
HE —HEME Gain on disposal of a
< W leasehold property — 19,375
HE—WEQA Gain on disposal
< W of a subsidiary 33 — 789
BEAFERA Fair value gains on investments
BaiekREZ at fair value through
NEERE  FRE profit or loss, net 471
Hi Others 266 —
737 20,164
26,621 43,322
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6.
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meEnaf 6. Profit before tax
REEBNFATEFENR, GEA) TH& The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after
18 - charging/(crediting):
—E2ELHE ZETRF
2007 2006
bt & FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EHTFERAR Cost of inventories sold 938,030 1,149,796
e Depreciation 14 29,203 23,952
JENFEFRE A Recognition of prepaid
lease payments 15 251 223
7 R FEEK A Research and development costs:
BH#E 2 IRL Deferred development costs
B 3% B 7R amortised 16 3,818 7,344
TEERX Current year expenditure 70,406 71,016
i A B 2% B ANORUE Impairment of deferred
development costs 16 — 3,500
74,224 81,860
BT HRET Minimum lease payments
AT ER under operating leases
HERBEX in respect of land
and buildings 12,194 9,683
2 B AN B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,550 2,050
1B B &M = Employee benefits expense
(BRES (including directors’
e (Fi8)) remuneration (note 8)):
& Wages and salaries and
EWMA = benefits in kind 186,064 188,355
AR HESZ 7 2 Equity-settled share option
BERBRES expense 317 715 1,085
ROKET SR Pension scheme contributions 6,646 5,673
B BRI Z R Less: Forfeited contributions (68) (156)
RIRET B FOFRE Net pension scheme
contributions* 6,578 5,517
193,357 194,957
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6. MARF () 6. Profit before tax (Continued)
—EELE —ZETRE
2007 2006
Bt FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e Z50 0 FEE Foreign exchange
differences, net 288 866
Bk & N B R 2 OB E Impairment of interests
in associates 3,928 2,822
JEW B SR R EAM  Impairment of trade and
JE W BR SORUE other receivables 330 2,710
FERE Provision for inventories 16,067 39,841
EmREEE Product warranty provision 500 500
e —R % Waiver of an amount due
B8~ R FIB from a fellow subsidiary 33 — 664
A HE —®ERME  Impairment of an
available-for-sale investment 19 — 10,000
BAFELABZR Fair value losses/(gains) on
ZEEZRATEAE investments at fair value
B8, (Yzk) - FE  through profit or loss, net (471) 2,265
HEWE BER Loss/(gain) on disposal of
XEZHEERMEIE,  items of property, plant and
(z=) (T BEE equipment (other than
—MEWE)  FH a leasehold property), net (188) 702
* ORZTTLEF=ZA=+—8 - KE@RAH * At 31st March, 2007, the Group had forfeited
FALABIR B R PR F E ) H R IRET SR 2 contributions of HK$68,000 (2006: HK$156,000)
2R W 3 A68,000 T (ZFBEENF ¢ available to reduce its contributions to the
156,000/ 7C) ° pension schemes in future years.
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7. MMERE 7. Finance costs

AEE

Group
—EELHE —TTREF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000

Mt 2 RITEERE Interest on interest-bearing

bank borrowing 178 1,136

EEbE 8. Directors’ remuneration

ARBERBHEEZSMABRAT ERES Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
FARA(T EBRA) REERBGDE pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
16EBAETFTHREFRNESEM LT ¢ Securities on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

KEE
Group
—EELE —TTREF
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
we Fees 488 480
EmEe Other emoluments:
e 2HR Salaries, allowances and
B H = benefits in kind 9,535 9,943
ERIDHN 2 B Performance related
incentive payment 112 293
BB ELERBREREN Employee share option benefits 191 257
BRIREFEIM R Pension scheme contributions 304 287
10,142 10,780
10,630 11,260
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8. EFEM< (W)

FA-ETEFCURTAASEMEHR
MRS ER T AR REARBBESEET
METREE  E—THBHRYHHRE
MIaE31 - HFEARBRENQFEINE
HEHET  YeREBHMAEEREERA
BR Mt ARNEFEFHBRRNESEIC
BEREXNEEMEWEAN -

(a) BYFHITES

ERFRRBLIFNTEENNE

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

During the year, certain directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised to
the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

ST directors during the year were as follows:
—EELHF ZEERF

2007 2006

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

AxHemns Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH 122 120
A [B9 B Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 122 120
F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 122 120
366 360

RERABABIIFATESTNE
e (ZTTREFE &) -

There were no other emoluments payable
to the independent non-executive directors
during the year (2006: Nil).
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8.

EEMe (W)

(b) BITEER—FHUTES

8.
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Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive

director
¥4
BER #%E  EEE% B4
He  EUAE B¥ze IRERN  HIER @i
Salaries, Performance  Employee Pension
allowances related share scheme Total
and benefits incentive option con-  remune-
Fees inkind  payment  benefits tributions ration
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EEtE 2007
YHEE. Executive directors:
BRRATHT Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,695 40 - 60 2,795
EEX Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,632 4 - 60 2,732
EHEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 450 18 29 2 54
RAHE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,661 - 65 61 1,787
£ Lee Koon Hung - 1,113 - 65 51 1,229
ERE Fok Ting Yeung, James - 984 14 3 45 1,075
- 9,535 12 19 304 10,142
FHTES: Non-executive director:
BETHE Lo Chi Chung, William 1 - - - - 12
12 9,535 12 19 304 10,264
S 2 2006
ungs. Executive directors:
EERrTHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson J» - 21713 85 - 60 2918
2 Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 3426 85 - 60 3,571
e Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - iy 23 - 26 491
AATE Kazuhiro Otani - 1483 53 103 57 1,696
ik Lee Koon Hung - 1,079 2% 103 50 1,258
EEE Fok Ting Yeung, James - 740 WA 51 34 846
- 9,943 293 257 287 10,780
FHTES: Non-executive director:
ETR Lo Chi Chung, William 120 - - - - 120
120 9,943 293 257 287 10,900

RER UBEBFITLEMLHERE
HFEBRELMME -

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.
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9. IEmEFER 9. Five highest paid employees
FALAERFEERE=Z2(ZZZTX
F:NB)ESF AEBesrRE s LM
H8 e AFEABME (ZTTRF + —
B)BRRYHFEETEENTSFBOT ¢

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2006: four) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2006: one) non-director, highest paid employees
for the year are as follows:

rEH

Group
—EELHF ZETRF
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
He - EMEREYAG Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,965 1,062
HRBBHB ES Performance related incentive payment 474 49
EBELRIERF Employee share option benefits 72 58
RIRET B 5K Pension scheme contributions 91 46
2,602 1,215

MENTFUNTHEZZHEEEEEZ
AT

following bands is as follows:

The number of non-director, highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the

EEAH
Number of employees
—EELHF A
2007 2006
1,000,001/ L& HK$1,000,001 to
1,500,000% 7T HK$1,500,000 2 1
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10.

IEEEHER (&)

RER —EZEaFHFEFEBCHER
REB TR IR R T8 K B RE -
E-—THBARVBRRMENZRE
A ZEFECRBENRFEIREFEL A
HER  YOrREBEHANERaRNE
R M AR FERBRENGETDE
EREXNESHFEEREENSRE
A o

]

BENSBRBENDRAFERBEELZ
B ERBEF AR E17.5% (ZFF X
F:175%) 58 - EtR 2 ERBEF
MEADRBREBREXBMEREER
ZEBED - mBRES  REHERHR

EEHHE o
Al 71

10.
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Five highest paid employees
(Continued)

During the year, share options were granted to a
non-director, highest paid employee in respect
of his services to the Group, further details of
which are included in the disclosures in note 31
to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised to the income
statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-
director, highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

—ZELEHF —ZEEZR
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REH - Group:

KEE — BE Current — Hong Kong
REE MR Charge for the year 11,727 9,670
NEFERETR Underprovision in prior years 3,980 1,086
REE — Hfvih= Current — Elsewhere 634 650
BT (HfiE29) Deferred (note 29) 1,532 10,474
REERIBNG B Total tax charge for the year 17,873 21,880
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10. RIE (4§) 10. Tax (Continued)
BAREAN R ARD T REKE R A
AEEBEEMEAE MBS HENE
BREFERBEIHEE  UREAM
REVEEME) BERBEE 2 HERNOT ¢

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit before tax using the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates)

to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

KEE Group
—EELHF —ETRF
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
758 A& A Profit before tax 77,781 76,271
RAEEME1T.5% Tax at the statutory
(ZEZRF175%) tax rate of 17.5%
AEZHIE (2006: 17.5%) 13,612 17.5 13,347 17.5
FEE DK Higher tax rate for specific
W EREEMNE provinces or
local authority 64 0.1 56 0.1
i 7% HA 8 Bt S B Adjustments in respect of
I8 2 B current tax of previous
periods 3,980 5.1 1,086 1.4
B & N AL 1R Losses attributable to
associates 244 0.3 — —
BB 2 WA Income not subject to tax (5,186) (6.7)  (1,440) (1.9)
LI a5 Expenses not deductible
for tax 5,964 7.7 8,132 10.7
SRIEEBSAEZ Tax losses utilised from
HRIERE B previous periods (1,201) (1.5) — —
HEER 2HIEEE Tax losses not recognised — — 676 0.9
H Others 396 0.5 23 —
RASEERBIX Tax charge at the Group's
AEZHRIE effective rate 17,873 23.0 21,880 28.7
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10.

MIE (&)

REBE_TTNE-ZA=Z+—BILFE
EREBBER(BBER) RAEEETHE
72 A5 1999/20004F Z 2004/20054F FR i F
FETHRBES  -@BHRBEBERNEEER
RIEITIRIEEE - WE 5t 1999/20004F
2000/2001 F RMFZEH L REMFIEH
S o REEE BB BB RE MR SH
FEREER  BEIBERELH - EED
Mo REBE 20002001 FRHEE
2 188,000 THEMILE B8 BEE
4,600,000/ c 2 fE i o

1999/20004F }2.2000/2001 F R Fi F & 2 1R
BHERSHIEETERR LRI TN L
EERAUBMNMBAZFHER - MHKES
FETPMERENZELHR - AAFE
ERA - LEKBREERZEERZE
BMECEEBRREFHAPOREET
ity MEL  REERZBEEDRHMM
BERBTEEASEAEIIBNERE -

R (BEE)ERE2AF Group Sense (International) Limited
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10. TAX (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD") initiated a tax audit on certain group
companies for the years of assessment from 1999/
2000 to 2004/2005. As the IRD is still conducting
the tax review on these companies, it has issued
protective profits tax assessments to them for the
years of assessment of 1999/2000 and 2000/
2001. The Group has lodged objections with the
IRD against the protective profits tax assessments.
According to the holdover notice issued by the
IRD, the Group has paid profits tax of
HK$188,000 for the year of assessment 2000/
2001 and purchased Tax Reserve Certificates
totalling HK$4,600,000.

These protective profits tax assessments for the
years of assessment of 1999/2000 and 2000/2001
mainly relate to a dispute over the deductibility
of certain expenses for tax assessment purposes.
The tax audit is in progress and a final settlement
has not yet been reached. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, after taking
professional advice from its tax adviser, there are
reasonable grounds to object the protective
assessments under dispute and accordingly, the
existing provision made is adequate and the tax
audit will not result in material additional tax
liability.
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1. FAFRESFEAEEER 11. Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

HE-_ZZLFE=-F=1+—HIFEARQ The consolidated profit attributable to equity

AERFBEAARGGEEaRNBE—EE7 holders of the Company for the year ended 31st

AR R B 75 5 5% 2 0% F114,502,0007% 7T March, 2007 includes a profit of HK$14,502,000

(ZZZTXF % 113,969,000 70) (Bt (2006: profit of HK$113,969,000) which has been

£32(b) ° dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company (note 32(b)).

12. B2 12. DIVIDENDS
—EELHF —TTRF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH— BREBK Interim — HK2.0 cents
2.0l (2006: HK2.0 cents)
(ZZZREF : 2.081L)  per ordinary share 23,952 23,952
KE — & - BB Proposed final — HK2.5 cents
2.5 11l (2006: HK3.0 cents)
(ZZZR4F : 3.081L)  per ordinary share 29,940 35,928
53,892 59,880
RFEEZRERPBRBZREFNBGRTT The proposed final dividend for the year is subject
ZBRERBEFRKg LESARAREIE to the approval of the Company's shareholders
& HAEE - at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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13.

FAFIHBERBRESAARGSR
2¥

SIREARRFI TR BN E AR RS
BARBER - RRAFEN 2 BRTH
B2 AT G -

BREFTRNIIREBEAFREARR LT AR
BESBEARGENAE - AEFE®
TERONEFHERFRACETEBRRZ
2 H (EREFEEREREN 2#ER
F) - MEBREREITEME RARITEZR
BREBRTREHRTZEBRZ NETFH
2 o

%S (BF)AMR AT Group Sense (International) Limited 1 2 ]

13. Earnings per share attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the
Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed exercise of
all outstanding share options.
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13. FAFHERBESTAELSHR 13. Earnings per share attributable to
2F (#]|) ordinary equity holders of the
Company (Continued)

BRERREERMNTIIIE T BIETE The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

—EELE ZETRE
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE R Earnings
RESTEARRAA Profit attributable to ordinary
AR REREE A equity holders of the Company,
JE(h BIRER K used in the basic and diluted
BB R A 2 % A earnings per share calculations 59,324 54,391
R4 & e
Number of shares
—EBLEHF ZETAREF
2007 2006
i) Shares
RETEEREXRAT Weighted average number of
ZERNBETLRAR ordinary shares in issue
hnE 15 88 during the year used in the
basic earnings per share
calculations 1,197,613,029 1,200,919,429
BEr e s EEaR Weighted average number of
(BEBEFMEEL ordinary shares assumed to
RREERBAETRE have been issued at no
TEMIER T ET) consideration on the
hnE 15 85 deemed exercise of all share
options with dilutive effects 576,947 568,237
BEstEBREE R Weighted average number of
2 EBRINETHH ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings
per share calculations 1,198,189,976 1,201,487,666
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14. W% BER®RE 14. Property, plant and equipment
rEE Group
gL Ba-
k¥  NEEE  RERRE  RERHE IERIK RE  ERIR A%
Leasehold Furniture,
landand  Leasehold fixturesand ~ Plant and Toolings Motor ~ Construction
buildings improvements  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles in progress Total

TEL T TEL T TAL TEL TAL TEL
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKs$'000 HK$°000

A Cost:
R-Z5RERA-A At st April, 2005 173,198 26,432 83,688 108,519 86,175 8,636 - 486,648
wE Additions - 5393 4,667 11,647 9,721 1,167 4318 36,913
ﬁ% Disposals (110,415) (7,454) (5,419) (625) (2,667) (250) - (126,830)
&5 &5l Exchange realignment 1,072 377 808 2,149 471 66 - 4,943
RZEZREZA=+-H At 31st March, 2006 and
k=227 ERA-A 1st April, 2006 63,855 24,748 83,744 121,690 93,700 9,619 4318 401,674
RE Additions - 987 1,943 1,763 11,136 552 4,896 21,2711
ﬁ% Disposals - (448) (190) (2,613) (1317 (242) - (4,810)
@;ﬁ Transfers - 6,001 - 1,073 992 - (8,066) -
B % &5 Exchange realignment 3,421 1,047 2,568 7,61 1,476 07 296 16,646
RZFELE=F=1-8 At 31st March, 2007 67,276 32,335 88,065 129,524 105,987 10,156 1,444 434,787
2ihE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZZERERA-A At 1st April, 2005 36,099 25,553 71,636 87,339 75,765 5,147 - 307,539
RAEFEAERE (Wi6)  Depreciation provided
during the year (note 6) 1,675 1,106 2,869 8,966 8,100 1,236 - 23952
EE Disposals (23,756) (6,885) (5222) (617) (2,661) (250) - (39,391)
B % 5 Exchange realignment 209 341 766 1,690 397 4 - 3,449
RZZZREZA=1—H At 31st March, 2006
) &:zsfrﬁwﬂ -f and 1st April, 2006 14,221 20,115 76,049 97,318 81,601 6,179 - 295,549
RAEFHERE (WE6)  Depreciation provided
during the year
(note 6) 1,329 2,602 2,893 11,370 9,668 1,341 - 29,203
ﬁ% Disposals - (8) (84) (2,611) (1,308) (237) - (4,248)
3 &5 Exchange realignment 738 941 2,459 5,954 1,181 154 - 11,427
RZZECEZA=1-HB At31st March, 2007 16,294 23,650 81317 112,091 91,142 7437 - 331,931
BESE - Net book value:
RZESLEZA
=t-f At 31st March, 2007 50,982 8,685 6,748 17,433 14,845 2,119 1,444 102,856
RZZEAEZBZF-H8 At 31st March, 2006 49,628 4,633 7,695 24,312 12,09 3,440 4318 106,125
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

14. % BER&MR ()

REERAAEERE L1 BT 2 REF

Bt :

14. Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

analysed as follows:

The net book values of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings at the balance sheet date are

—EELHF ZTTRF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REZBZFFHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 9,698 9,980
WA B K BE 2 A A P Medium term leases in Mainland China
HE 41,284 39,648
50,982 49,628
15. MTEEREA 15. Prepaid lease payments
rEH
Group
—EELHF —EER
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIUA—BZERAE Carrying amount at 1st April 8,858 8,885
RAEFZE R (fT7£6) Recognised during the year (note 6) (251) (223)
M 3, &5 Exchange realignment 607 196
R=ZA=+—H2 Carrying amount at 31st March
fREE 9,214 8,858
WATERFIEA - ek Current portion included in
HaERER 2 prepayments, deposits and
mENER 5 other receivables (238) (223)
ERBH D Non-current portion 8,976 8,635
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

16. BERAREF 16. Deferred development costs
rEE
Group
—EELHF ZETREF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEA—H At 1st April:
DN Cost 25,848 16,644
REt#ERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (18,684) (7,840)
BRTEFE Net carrying amount 7,164 8,804
RIUA—BZA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation
R RO (E and impairment, at 1st April 7,164 8,804
10 — A BB 5 E Additions — internal development 3,428 9,204
FEBHER Amortisation provided during the year
(Kt at6) (note 6) (3.818) (7,344)
FANBE (K:76) Impairment during the year (note 6) — (3,500)
W=R=+—H At 31st March 6,774 7,164
R=ZAR=+—8H At 31st March:
B 7 Cost 29,276 25,848
Rt RRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (22,502) (18,684)
FEAE Net carrying amount 6,774 7,164
R-_TEEREFE=ZF=+—H EHLE At 31st March, 2006, the directors conducted a
B 2 8RR AR 5T I e RR B0 5 B B K review of the Group’s development costs and
R BBREKMEBFMEE  Eit & identified that certain development costs were
ZEE 2 RE Mk AN B #583,500,000 impaired as the relevant finished goods were
BT ZBEERE - obsolete. Accordingly, an impairment loss of

HK$3,500,000 was recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for that year.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

17. B ARICESR 17. Interests in subsidiaries
P NN

Company
—EELHE —TTREF
2007 2006
FHETT FAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ELEMRE - KA Unlisted investments, at cost 269,334 269,334
JE LSBT B8~ B BR 3R Due from subsidiaries 761,381 886,770
JERHBRRIER Due to subsidiaries (187,707) (275,886)
843,008 880,218
SR ORE Less: Impairment (269,334) (269,334)
573,674 610,884

PR+ 8 A RNEE 2 EIH B A R R
3£29,940,0008 T (Z T T XN &F
35,928,000 L) + FEUL R FE( BT B A A AR
HEEER 2ERBEETERE %%
FEZEREREATEES

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$29,940,000 (2006: HK$35,928,000) which are
repayable within twelve months, the amounts due
from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due
approximate to their fair values.
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A

Name

ERMBREXARDA
Concept Technology Industries
Limited

Favourable Qutcome Limited*

EROBNETHER AR
Global Asia High-tech
Electronics Co Ltd™*

Group Sense (China) Limited*

Group Sense (Dongguan)
Limited*

Group Sense (Holding)
Limited*

Group Sense (S.E.A.)
Limited*

REHBEYNERLF
Group Sense Cyberspace
Limited*

FEMBEHRERMME (E)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

17. RBARZER ()

EmERL/
Bl
REEHE

Place of

incorporation/

registration

and operations

#EE (BE)BMR2AF Group Sense (International) Limited
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17. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

BERAZEREK/
dEfRAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

e 1007 7T
Hong Kong HK$100
EBREIHS E

((RBEZES]) US$1
British Virgin

[slands (“BVI")
th 45,000,000 7T
The PRC HK$45,000,000
REREIES (E
BVI Us$1
RERZES/HE 10%7T
BVI/the PRC us$10
RERAZHE 3,000% T
BVI Us$3,000
RERERES (EP
BVI Us$1
EE D 100% T
Samoa Us$100

ERF RS
KEzED L

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

E# CF:3
Direct  Indirect
— 100

— 100

— 100
100 —
— 100
100 —
100 —
100 —

IREHK

Principal
activities

REER
Investment
holding

RAER
Investment
holding

HERHEETEM
Manufacture and
trading of

electronic products

REZRK
Investment
holding

BEME
Property
holding

REER
Investment
holding

REER
Investment
holding

REER
Investment
holding
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17. BB A FES (&)

e
Name

BEERAA
Group Sense Limited

Group Sense Manufactory
Company Limited

EEREARRDA
Group Sense Manufactory
Company Limited

BEBHRRERRAA
Group Sense Mobile-Tech
Limited

BEPDARRER DA
Group Sense PDA
Holdings Limited

HRAL/
Bl
PEL

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

B
Hong Kong

RERLES
/HE
BVI/the PRC

BE

Hong Kong

BiE
Hong Kong

He#ES
Cayman Islands

17. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

EROTEERE/
dEfRAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

1,000/ 7T
BRERFRLE
BRI
200,000 7T
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000?

(ED
Us$1

2ET
HK$2

2ET
HK$2

LAk
2,115,837% T
AEBER
17,182% 1T
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
Preferred shares
Us$17,182

KNEERS
RkEZED L

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

BE E:
Direct  Indirect
— 100

— 100

— 100

— 98.95
98.95 —

TEEK
Principal
activities
R RHETTER

Design and trading
of electronic
products

REETEmM
MI AR
Provisions of
subcontracting
services for
electronic products

EEER
Investment

holding

R RHEETER

Design and trading
of electronic
products

REER
Investment holding
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

17. BB 2R # = (1])

aEMmRL/
& i
REgm

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

4

Name

EEELERERAR N
Group Sense PDA Limited Hong Kong
BEOARR (BE)AERRA BE
Group Sense Software Hong Kong
Technology
(Hong Kong) Limited
#Aslt JI-TtVA BA
Kabushiki Kaisha Japan
Group Sense *
Supreme Style Technology EBEZHE
Limited* BVI
ERPAABEM R i
BRARY The PRC
st

(1) ZHIERF -

(2) B I A A KA S IR A AR
REMERERAE ZBE KM FEMBRR
REINARE LREZERN - REREES
BR2BEFDIK

(3) MPBERERIZBEREERF -

* WM R KE B GETAIES P Sk & ok B
ZHMKEABETEZ -

129

17. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

BRAZERE/
dEfRAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

100/ T
HK$100

100/ 7T
HK$100

60,000,000H
Yen 60,000,000

100E T
Us$100

AR #20,000,000
RMB20,000,000

Notes:

FRAEL

REZBEAL

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

BE#

Direct

CF:3

Indirect

98.95

100

100

100

70

IREHK

Principal
activities

Rt RHE
EfEM

Design and trading
of electronic
products

REER
Investment
holding

AHRHEETER
Design and trading
of electronic
products

REZK
Investment
holding

Rt RHE
EFEmREH
Design and trading
of electronic
product and
software

(1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(2)  The deferred shares practically carry no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company or
to participate in any distribution on winding up.

Limited liability company established in Mainland
China.

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or

other Ernst & Young International member firms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE-_ZTTLF=R=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

17. BB AFEE () 17. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)
IR EZRABEAREB CRAFEER The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
BERFENENEAEBEEFEZZH Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
ZHBAGE - EERE  REHEMHMBA principally affected the results for the year or
A2 ERERERBAN TR formed a substantial portion of the net assets of

the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

18. BiBAFIZER 18. Interests in associates
REE
Group
—EELHF —EERXR
2007 2006
F#ET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
DIHEEFE Share of net assets 533 12,004
IR B Goodwill on acquisition 8,491 —
9,024 12,004
SR ORE Less: Impairment — (12,000)
9,024 4
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HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

18.

BELAFHED (]) 18.

R Z RARRRDEERAEERBE
EF o REERW 2EREETERSY -
ZEREZFEAEEEAFEMES -

TEBERRZFHBOT

T/
o AR AR R A
Particulars
of issued/
7 g registered
Name shares held
ERBEEAEERAF FhmE
([&#) BT
ACME Tech Precision Tim
Moulds Limited Ordinary
("ACME") shares of
HK$1 each
BMNERREBRAA BREE
(M#MeRl) 1T
Sinocard Technology Limited Tim
(“Sinocard”) Ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each

EEREFEFEMAERAR AK®40,000,0007T
([EEREE]D RMB40,000,000
Chongging Standard
Electronic Product Co., Ltd.
(“Chongging Standard”)

EXFRBEERMERRL AR KELE

R EB AT Rk B 2 A pK B A Rl
1TE%Z -

% (BF)AMR AT Group Sense (International) Limited 1 3]

Interests in associates (Continued)

The amounts due from associates, included in
the Group’s current assets, are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The carrying amount of these amounts
due approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal associates are as

follows:
508 4
EMAYL FEREED
T i B ZBEDL TEXEK
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
incorporation/  attributable Principal
registration to the Group activities
BB IREEREE
Hong Kong 35 Manufacture and
trading of moulds
EE 45 BE®
Hong Kong Inactive
H 25 HERHEET
The PRC BREEM

Manufacture and
trading of electronic
medical appliances

All of the above principal associates are not audited by
Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young
International member firms.
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HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

18. BIELARH#ER (1])

FREVNESRRYAKEZAFERE
BEARFENEARANEEEEFETZ
DLZMERR c EERR - RHEMBE
NAEFBREHENBRITE -

BEERREZMBRFERAT _A=1—
BN Hf EatBp 2 A BEERGEAE
BER - KEMBWERDRERZRARN
—B—HEZA=+t—BZHEZEARRS
LT E -

BREEZEHE  AREBEEBBRERR
BENAEZE  MASEDKRIEHERERE
HEHEREEMNEREE TAEEREKEE
REBFZABRENRHEAREES A
823,000 7T (ZZEZT /R : 4,312,000%
J0) X 5,344,000 T (ZEE X F ¢
4,521,000/ 7C) °

TRHIFBNEETERB ZAKERZQ

RIPFBERBE
BE Assets
afE&E Liabilities
A Revenue
REEERE Loss for the year

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

The financial statements of the above associates
are coterminous with those of the Group, except
for Chongging Standard which have a financial
year ending 31st December. The consolidated
financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions of these associates between 1st
January and 31st March.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of ACME and Sinocard because
the share of losses of these associates exceeded
the Group’s interests in the associates. The
Group’s unrecognised share of losses of these
associates for the current year and cumulatively
was HK$823,000 (2006: HK$4,312,000) and
HK$5,344,000 (2006: HK$4,521,000),
respectively.

The following table illustrates the summarised
financial information of the Group’s associates
extracted from their management accounts:

—ZELEHF ZEERF
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$°000
6,556 —
(16,528) (10,026)
535 —
(11,315) (9,582)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

19. THHERS

19. Available-for-sale investments

AEE
Group
—EELE TEERX
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BAFENEREZ FHRAKE © Listed equity investments, at fair value:

e Hong Kong 115 115
BRAZ I ETRARE Unlisted equity investments, at cost 36,094 37,869
A ORE Less: Impairment (10,000) (10,000)

26,094 27,869
26,209 27,984

LRREBRERAFLRRE - HIEEER
AHEERERRABEEEHARERF
$ o

EREARE 2 A FETREAET E

=)
Ea

MN_TBTLE=ZA=1+—H0 ARAEQ
FEMHCHEEBEN  BEESRETE
ASEETEEAFE R LIELETRA
& (BRME 426,094,000/ 70 (=T F X
F : 27,869,000/ 7T) ) THIR AR ANk R E A
EE °

HE_Z2ZXF-ZA=+—HLFE " K
EEEREEAERFLTRENRED
10,000,000 7T 2 B E 1B - ZBIERRK
KEREEEREMHRRRENE ZFHR
BEREBEUSREE ZGEITISEJREN
BB ZEBENE -

The above investments consist of investments in
equity securities which were designated as
available-for-sale investments and have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices.

As at 31st March, 2007, certain unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of
HK$26,094,000 (2006: HK$27,869,000) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31st March, 2006,
management of the Group determined that there
was an impairment loss of HK$10,000,000 of an
unlisted investment which was measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and the net present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
estimated market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

20. RRiE& 20. Long term deposits
rEH
Group
—EELHE —TTREF
2007 2006
FHET F#E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEWE  WER Deposit for acquisition of items of
REFHEELD property, plant and equipment 2,103 2,595
HEZS Rental deposits 1,387 1,365
3,490 3,960
2. BeFERARERZRE 21. Investments at fair value through

profit or loss

rEE
Group
—EELF ZETR
2007 2006
FET FE&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FELEMEHZES - LAFE Unlisted debt securities, at fair value
— BEHFHEEFEMNE — Debentures with fixed interest
E5.5%%E7.5% rates from 5.5% to 7.5%
ZHEREHA AR per annum with maturity
—E-FF dates from 8th November,
+—ANAE 2010 to 28th April, 2014
—T-NEF
mMAZ+N\HIE 41,211 40,740
EXRZZETLFRZBERF=A=T The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March
. Bz LEmESFBSHEHBFEATHY 2007 and 2006 were classified as held for trading.
BEAFELABRR IREZAFEUR The fair values of investments at fair value
HERAEERNHERE ZREAREE through profit or loss are determined based on
JE ° the quoted bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date.
RZEELF=A=+—H AEEEF At 31st March, 2007, the carrying amount of the
8K T {£20,000,000% Tiz A FEZ AEZE Group’s investments at fair value through profit
RKZWE(ZTZ/RF £ 20,000,000 7T) or loss amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2006:
B - UEVSAREE 2 —RITRE (Kt HK$20,000,000) was pledged as security for one
FE28) © of the Group’s banking facilities (note 28).
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HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

22. 8 22. Inventories
rEH
Group
—E2ELE —EERF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R M Raw materials 105,814 102,147
=R Work in progress 31,447 41,527
RIAK G Finished goods 33,638 37,809
170,899 181,483
23. Bk E SR 23. Trade receivables

AEEREEFP2BEFTENEERAL
7 IRBA—RNF60EOK - BEXF
EERARNEERE - AEBEBRKEFEE
REN 2 FEWGR IR 1T BR 4 B3 B (5
ERRRERRK SRAEEEEHENA
HIZ 8 - BB BRATEFE -

AT REKE ZEFANKEIE B REH
FEEMNGEERZREDHT

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally
60 to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are interest-free.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at
the balance sheet date, based on the payment
due date and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEE

Group
—EEBLF —ZEEREF
2007 2006
FET FAETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
0Z60X 0 — 60 days 155,670 172,534
61E90K 61 — 90 days 505 2,089
90K Over 90 days 7,531 8,295
163,706 182,918
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HE-_TTLtF=A=1T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

24. FFER - ZRERHEMBEURER 24. Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
REBRADNGIHNTEMNED HEREM The Group’s and the Company’s prepayments,
FEWEEZWESS  HEEmMEEE AN TE deposits and other receivables are interest-free
HE - and their carrying amounts approximate to their
fair values.
25. HeRR&EEER 25. Cash and cash equivalents
r&H ZNA|
Group Company
ZEBLE _TTRF Z2BLF ZTTRE
2007 2006 2007 2006
FET FET FET FHET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Be MIBTTHR Cash and bank balances 66,594 36,608 78 67
E B F R Time deposits 206,291 210,999 — —
RekReFHEIEE Cash and cash equivalents 272,885 247,607 78 67

REER  REBUARB(TARED &
BzReRIREEFEEE 248,738,000
JC(ZEZ R 9,646,000870) - ARE
TEEBRERAEMER - A - BRIEH
Bl b 51 B IR R R A TE - SR R AT EE
ERAT AEEEEAFSBRERETNSE
EREBNRTEARBLHBAHEME
egg °

RITASDRBROTBARTERMEZ
FEMERBERAME - RFAEENFR S
FR - EHMEMERZHBRAR - NF—
AR=ZBATE YIS ZRHATENE
RAEHBAE - RERBAEFERBEZ
FREESEEAFERE -

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$48,738,000
(2006: HK$9,646,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

26. ERAERREMNRE

AT RENE SRR R B R A 5 E
HEAAEMREEBR ZREDHT

26. Trade and bills payables

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables
as at the balance sheet date, based on the
payment due date is as follows:

rEH

Group
—EELE ZETRF
2007 2006
FETT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0Z£ 60X 0 — 60 days 161,843 177,367
61290k 61 — 90 days 3,660 2,802
[EREEIPN Over 90 days 1,323 3,674
166,826 183,843

ENEZEREFIANE - B—K1N30
PN

o
4 ©

o ms

ENESEFNEEEREAFEMES -

27. HEFRERREHAR

HiENERRLE S - BFONREA
NEA - Rt EMERRESFBENERR
BEEQFEMRS -

27.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables
approximate to their fair values.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables are interest-free and have an
average term of six months. The carrying amounts
of other payables and accruals approximate to
their fair values.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE-_ZTTLF=R=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

28. HERRITHEE 28. Interest-bearing bank borrowings
rEE Group
“EEtE ZETRF
2007 2006
BRFE BB F %
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
(%) FET (%) FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
bk Current BEREESF
RITEX - EER Bank overdraft, unsecured and TEF FIE+0.25%
TRERER repayable on demand N/A Hong Kong
Dollar Prime
Rate plus
0.25%
—  perannum 608
RZTEERE=ZA=+—H  KEENR At 31st March, 2006, the carrying amount of the
TEEMNEAMEREQATFEMESE - Group's bank borrowing approximated to its fair
value.
AEE -—RITBMEANLEEHBG H£KL One of the Group’s banking facilities is secured
20,000,000/ 7T (Z =& 754 : 20,000,000 by the pledge of certain of the Group's
BIL) AAFELEABRE A TREES investments at fair value through profit or loss
R (FFE21) © totalling HK$20,000,000 (2006: HK$20,000,000)
(note 21).
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BE—_TFT

tHF=ZA=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

29. JEERIA 29. Deferred tax
AEERCEHBEEEHRGENESH B AN The movements in deferred tax assets and
™~ liabilities during the year are as follows:
EZEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
rEE Group

o e 8
BABEETE RREZEH
MITELEE BANERE i
Losses
available
Depreciation  for offset
allowance against
in excess of future
related taxable
depreciation profit Total
FET FETT FEL
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
RZEERFMA—H t 1st April, 2005 2,376 (12,243) (9,867)
ERNPEBRRANG / (20) Deferred tax charged/(credited)
REERE (KiF10) to the income statement
during the year (note 10) (1,528) 12,171 10,643
R-ZZTRXE=F=1+—H At 31st March, 2006 and
RZTLERENA—H Tst April, 2006 848 (72) 776
ERPEBRERAMG/ (20) Deferred tax charged/(credited)
REERE (KiF10) to the income statement
during the year (note 10) 1,577 (345) 1,232
RZZZ+F=FA=1+—H At 31st March, 2007 2,425 (417) 2,008
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29. SERERIA (48)

29. Deferred tax (Continued)

ELEBEEE Deferred tax assets
rEE Group
Hih
Others
FET
HK$'000
RZEZRFMA—H At 1 April 2005 131
FREBZRE NN Deferred tax credited to the
ERFIE (Hz10) income statement during the
year (note 10) 169
RZEEXF=ZA=+—HK At 31 March 2006 and 1 April 2006
“EEAFMA-R 300
FRNEERRTNKREN Deferred tax charged to the
ERLHE (fzE10) income statement during
the year (note 10) (300)
RZEZ+FE=A=+—H2Z  Gross deferred tax assets
ELMEEAESLR at 31 March 2007 —
BEMEGEFSE Net deferred tax liabilities:
RZZZREF=A=1—H At 31 March 2006 476
RZZEZ+E=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 2,008

AEBRBERTRARBEBELEN
87,909,000/ 7t (Z T T /X4 : 96,742,000
BT MBS EE - Wl R HRIR S E £
BERBENARNARERTEF - BZ
MEBARECEBEE BREMERAHE
FRRREF AT HEHEZENE AR TEA
ZREEE  BRZEEEns - LA
RBELEFHIBEEE -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
before IRD assessment of HK$87,909,000 (2006:
HK$96,742,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised by these subsidiaries.
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29.

30.
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EERIA (8]) 29. Deferred tax (Continued)
RZEEELF=FA=+—H HRMAEASE At 31st March, 2007, there was no significant
BETHERAR BEAaxEE a0 unrecognised deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for
RELEBFNCEEDL - RSB EEIN taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
HEE  HAEEVERZEREMES earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries,
OB ERETNEARERELERBE associates or joint venture entities as the Group
BE(ZEERF  &|&) o has no liability to additional tax should such
amounts be remitted.
AN A [A) B ER 32 AN B9 AR B B B B P S There are no income tax consequences attaching
TigR - to the payment of dividends by the Company to
its shareholders.
B % 30. Share capital
vy Shares
—ZEELHF —EEREF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EE Authorised:
3,000,000,0000% & i% 3,000,000,000 (2006: 3,000,000,000)
HE0N0B T E B ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(Z2TRF
3,000,000,0000%) 300,000 300,000
EETRHE - Issued and fully paid:
1,197,613,0290% &% 1,197,613,029 (2006: 1,197,613,029)
M{E0.10/%8 7T & i % ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(ZEZRF -
1,197,613,0294%) 119,761 119,761

BE_ZTRF=A=+—HIEFER
ARABBRORBHOT :

(i) BAfTEEEN0.202/8 7T77 40,000
MBERRERNRIERE - BUEAER
& RE CGRFFZ AT 8,080/%8 L& 1T
40,000% & I EE0.1078 JT &) I 3@ A%
R R

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, the
Company had the following share transactions:

(i)  The subscription rights amounting to 40,000
share options were exercised at the exercise
price of HK$0.202 per share, resulting in
the issue of 40,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$8,080; and
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30. &% (i)
B4 (3)
i)y RBE-—ZETEAE-A=-+—HI=
ER - AD A BB AR (E

2,970,0007% T £ 216,082,0000 & 5
B o SR IERE R RS T
5 o

K2RBAQREETEBRKRAFATHIER
Wi EEiE  FTFEERXSZZBEN
™~

30. Share capital (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31st March, 2006,
the Company repurchased 6,082,000 of its
own shares through the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of
HK$2,970,000. These shares were cancelled
upon repurchase.

A summary of the transactions during the prior

year with reference to the above movements in

the Company’s issued ordinary share capital is as

follows:
BET BET i)
RO EE L& HEE B
Issued Share
Number of share  premium
shares in issue capital account Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTREMA—H At 1st April, 2005 1,203,655,029 120,366 412,062 532,428
BITHEREERRE) Share options exercised (i) 40,000 4 4 8
R 10 B 1 % 5 8 (i) Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (ii) (6,082,000) (609) (2,361) (2,970)
At 31st March, 2006,
1st April, 2006 and
31st March, 2007 1,197,613,029 119,761 409,705 529,466

BLRARE

AARELRBESE RREFETER
TZEERBENFBHEN M HRERME
31

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme

and the share options issued under the scheme

are included in note 31 to the financial

statements.

2007 B # 4 Annual Report



FEMBEHRERMME (E)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZTLF=R=1+—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

31.

BB

AABERMELREERE ([F1E]) - B
EHE B RBRERAEERPERE
HBEMNELEZEMZAERSEE - &
B RBER2EERRARRZES (B
BIFATESR) AREZHMERSR
ABE  AEBBERIEMERAEEFTR
BREZAL FER_FTT_FMA=
AR A B (BR SE A EL Al 05 SRR SR B AT R
ERlF) B AMAER AR RTF -

RBFEENEER TRORTEZESL
REEZBNDBE  TEBEXFEER
PR A TE 1T (18 70 2R 2 REAAT B ) B 31T X
NZ210% ° 58T EEER2EENME
f12f@ A BEEECRBEN A FETZ
& E - RERARFEMERCSET
Bt 21% o (a8 Hi IR il 69 18 S5 SR B HE
E-SEHARBRASE SRR ME -

31.

#EE (BE)BMR2AF Group Sense (International) Limited

143

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating,
attracting and retaining eligible participants
whose contribution are vital to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees or officers of the
Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or
any person that have business relationship with
the Group. The Scheme was adopted on 2nd
April, 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, and will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-
month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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31. BERBRERS (&)

MARFRICES  BEaTHABREZR
Rk FEIMzHEALRHELRRE
VERARNB B IERITEEELIE -
BEAh - MRAER12E AR ARR ZE
ERRABIIATESHFEESEZH
BATREELRBREMBEITZROEE
BEANFERREEEITRMZ20.1%%
Bk 2 ¥ E B E5,000,0008 T (2 &
HEBARARRGER) - BBLEERE
ERREARE LB -

RTAREEE THHEF21EEEA
W BNEERBRES BT Z2RE8AR
BUERNELRARE BEROELRRE
WMITEHRDRESATE  BXESEBEHHA
BB REZRTATEREERAE
2 BEIER o

BERREZITEEIRESRE  HET
AERTIFHRSENERB RN EE
ERBRER TFTEREH XA KT
& (VA2 aRMDEBLERRERT AR
RISMEZ 5 AR X FTATE 2 FHH M
RGN AR RDAEE -

BERBEL A TRHA AR EHR
BREZLRRZES -

31.

Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 business days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is determinable by the directors and is not

later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer, and (iii) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. BB ERD () 31. Share option scheme (Continued)
FA - RBEEE - THEERREMKIT The following share options were outstanding
& - under the Scheme during the year:

AREHR
Number of share options
&
BXARE EEIRE HREXIRE
i R EiRRE PAiLd ZTEE REAE
ZEERE ZEBtF ZREAE (BREEWA) by BT
HA-H EREH Erl ERFE ZB=t-H (R.A.5) (A.A.5) (8R) (8H)
Exercise
Exercise period price of At grant
of share options share date of
Name or At Granted Exercised Cancelled At Date of grant (both dates options**  options***
SHERE  category 1st April, during during during ~ 31st March,  of share options* inclusive) HKS HKS
& of participant 2006 the year the year the year 2007  (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY) per share per share
EZRHE  Directors and
ZBEAL  their associates
EES Tam Wai Ho, 900,000 - - - 900,000 19042004 20.01.2005% o 0.950 0.920
A¥st Samson 19.01.2010
BEZ Tam Wai Tong, 900,000 — — — 900,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
Thomas 19.01.2010
ENEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, 400,000 - - - 400,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
Vivian 19.01.2010
- 400,000 — — 400,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007Zt0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
il Kazuhiro Otani 900,000 - - - 900,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
800,000 — . — 800,000 03.06.2005  26.04.2006Zto 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
- 800,000 — — 800,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007Zt0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
£y Lee Koon Hung 1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
(i) (Note) 19.01.2010
1,300,000 — - — 1,300,000 03.06.2005  26.04.2006Zt0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
- 500,000 - — 500,000 19.07.2006  15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
- 800,000 - - 800,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
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31. B ERD () 31. Share option scheme (Continued)

BrRREYE

Number of share options

Erane B REXIRE
BidRE BRIRE RMEXARE

i i BxaRE ZARH ZfifEe RuAge
ZRERF CREtE ZELAE (BEEERE) b A7
BA-B  FRRH FRfiR FREE ZAZT-H (B.AF) (B.A.5) (8R) (8K

Exercise  Immediately

Exercise period price of  before the
of share options share date
Name or At Granted Exercised Cancelled At Date of grant (both dates options**  of grant
SHEHZ  category 1st April, during during during  31st March, of share options* inclusive) HKS HKS
ER of participant 2006 the year the year the year 2007 (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY)  pershare  per share
BT Fok Ting Yeung, 400,000 - — - 400,000 12.08.2002  17.06.2003%to 0.250 0.166
James 16.06.2008
400,000 - - - 400,000 24032003 20.01.2004Zt0 0.202 0.300
19.01.2009
400,000 - - - 400,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
400,000 - — - 400,000 03.06.2005  26.04.2006Zto 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
- 400,000 - - 400,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
8,200,000 2,900,000 - — 11,100,000
i Others
8 Employees 30,000 - - - 30,000 12.08.2002  17.06.2003%t0 0.250 0.166
16.06.2008
96,000 - - - 96,000 24.03.2003  20.01.2004Zt0 0.202 0.300
19.01.2009
4,645,000 - - (495,000) 4,150,000 19.04.2004  20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
5,962,000 - - (687,000) 5,275,000 03.06.2005  26.04.2006Zto 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
— 6,671,000 - (335,000 6,336,000 19.07.2006  15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
10,733,000 6,671,000 — (1,517,000 15,887,000
L Total 18,933,000 9,571,000 — (1,517,000 26,987,000
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31.

ZERRiEat® (&)

Wrat - ERELAEZERBIABRABZEE
WEEFAARZEBLRRE KT
TLE-A=Z+ B EEEZALADH
1,500,00017 B R IRE (Z T RF -
1,000,0001%) E@%Eiﬁuéﬁiﬁﬁ'ﬁi
ZIBERBRIEERNA

FRRTT 0B 5T B IHE B AR T AT

* BARBEZEEHERLABEETE
HIRI AR LE o

o BEERBREZITEBERAT R HIRSARSE

Tz ABERAL Tk$ZHMﬁMﬁEZ
pe.

o %1§%§@H§$§T§ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ&§2$“_
BN ERECRBER D A A —EX
CBE BT 2 TR (B - BB RN %ﬁ
ERMBIREZ AR RIRNERRER
ZEBARBEREREFRBENZE
SRR EDEITE - MEITEE B HRIAYHE
LR B 2 AT I8

FARLELELARBREZATER
861,000 7L - HRAAXRKEBE_TTLF
= A E+—¢¢J§WEE§;.,U{§5'EWH%EE
F715,0008 7T °

31.

% (BF)AMR AT Group Sense (International) Limited 147/

Share option scheme (Continued)

Note: The wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, who is also an
employee of the Company, was granted share
options of the Company. At 31st March, 2007,
her 1,500,000 (2006: 1,000,000) share options
of Mrs. Lee were included under the interests in
share options of Mr. Lee Koon Hung set out
above.

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from
the date of grant until the commencement of
the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus
issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.

**%*  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as
at the date of grant of the share options is the
Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of grant of the
options. The price of the Company’s shares
disclosed immediately before the exercise date
of the share options is the weighted average of
the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately
before the dates on which the options were
exercised over all of the exercises of options
within the disclosure line.

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$861,000 of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$715,000
during the year ended 31st March, 2007.
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31. BERBRERS (&)

FRABRES N ZEERBEZAFETS
REH BB AL E B ELEBRER
HIEFR RARFREL(AET - TRINHEE
“EREFAZ T LFEARAZZ

31. Share option scheme (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options
granted during the year was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which

B2 EiE the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used for the year
ended 31st March, 2007:

TR B R (%) Dividend yield (%) 9.09%

T8 H K 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 3461%

17 2 B 1) 2 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.20% & 4.64%

BERKEZTEFTER (F) Expected life of option (year) 3 years

I1E (&) Share prices (HK$) 0.54 & 0.55

BERBENGTFHRIREBE—FH
BLBIBRETE X TR RAREHRZTT
R o TRHK IR [ BRI 2% 18 AT 1R R R
KBE2RE  BERLCREBRER -

Rt ERFERILE AR L ELRK
BEOEMEE -

REEEB - NARRIEETE526,987,000
MDARITEBILRRE - BEAQRBRTR
REE  2ETEHRTELRREREH
#£1726,987, 000 A AR FEIN LB - A
#(2,699,000/8 L BN AR R R FT BT
Bl A $015,935,0008 TR B @ E o

R BRERIERR - AAREE 2
£26,577,00010 RITE B LR - 4948
EREHARARARDEHITRM2% °

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past one year and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
26,987,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of
26,987,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of
HK$2,699,000 and share premium of
HK$15,935,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 26,577,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 2% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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For the year

32. @

(a)

ended 31st March, 2007

rEM

ARERAFERBEFE S
FRAED 2RI HRESESE
GABRREBEN -

AEEZBHFEEHERERE-NAN=ZF
ARRB 2B EHRTPTET 2 A EE
ERmMEE KB AR RN ZHE -
RRIZFRAD N HT 2 ARBIRAD
EEZER -

32. Reserves

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 51
of the financial statements.

The Group's special reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares in 1993,
over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.
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32. | (48)

32. Reserves (Continued)

(b) &AF (b) Company
R  Bi3RE  RERA/
RtEEE  SARR  ROHG i (REER) ag
Retained
Share Capital Share profits/
premium  Contributed  redemption option (accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
Bzt TAL TAL TAL T TEn TEn
Notes  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
RZZZEE  Balance at 15t April, 2005
BmA-Rz&H 412,062 21,976 419 - 4,000 438,457
Bk Issue of shares 30 4 - - - - 4
BABERAE  Repurchase and
cancellation of shares 30 (2,361) — — — — (2,361)
BSR4 Equity-settled share option
BETRERZE  amangements 31 - - - 1,085 - 1,085
EERA Profit for the year 1" - - - - 113,969 113,969
BEEZSERE  Interim 2006 dividend paid
hERE 12 - - - - (23.952) (23.952)
BT Proposed final 2006
ZEERE dividend
RERE 12 - - - - (35,928) (35,928)
RZZERE  At31st March, 2006
=ZF=t-H 409,705 21,976 419 1,085 58,089 491,274
WREZMZ  Equity-settled share option
ExLAREZE  amangements 31 - - - 715 - 715
FRET Profit for the year l - - - - 14,502 14,502
BREZZELE Interim 2007 dividend paid
TERE 12 - - - - (23,952) (23,952)
EEREZ Proposed final 2007 dividend
Z5TtE
RERE 12 - - - - (29,940) (29,940)
RZZZLE At31st March, 2007
“f=1-H 409,705 21,976 419 1,800 18,699 452,599
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32. ffm (#)

KRR ZEBARBIERE-—NN=ZFARQ
Rl ETATFTET 2 SEEA MU
ZHBRARKRG Z AFEBRRARBEZSE
BHMBEITZ2ARRRDEEZIED < R
BEHBEQNTE1981 (KEL]) » —BAF
AIEETEBRT @ WEARBBEARZZE
mMEKEELDIK -

BARBBREFEEERCREERTEZE
ERBREZATE  FRYBHERWE
QAZ AN BEMINZR P 2B K
dﬁ o

33. HE—XMELQR

32. Reserves (Continued)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1993, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a company may make
distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

33. Disposal of a subsidiary

—ZEELEHF e A
2007 2006
B i FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEBEFE: Net assets disposed of:
A RIE R E A Prepayments and other
JiE Wt BR 5Kk receivables — 156
JEEtBEREAM Accruals and other
JE < BR 5K payables — (264)
RS REER Exchange fluctuation
reserve realised — 172
— 64
FA R FE W — [R) R Y /B Waiver of amount due
NGIE$E] from a fellow subsidiary 6 — (664)
HE—fEAR 2 W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 5 — 789
— 189
TAE - Satisfied by:
R Cash — 189
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33. HE—FMEBLAF () 33. Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)
MEBLE " RMNBLARA2BHERREE An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
BHEERAFEZOMOT : equivalents in respect of the disposal of a

subsidiary is as follows:

—EELHF ZETRX
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ReERERREBLE Cash consideration and inflow of cash
—RXWBRAIZRE and cash equivalents in respect
FReFEBEBEERA of the disposal
of a subsidiary — 189
34. RARAR 34. Contingent liabilities
NEER > UEREMBHRERPIEZHEA At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities
BEWT not provided for in the financial statements were
as follows:
N NN
Group Company
ZEERtE —TTRE ZBRLE _TITRF
2007 2006 2007 2006

TER TEx TER TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

REBERTHERS Guarantees given to
éa FRITZER banks in connection with
facilities granted to:
[il=pNS| Subsidiaries - — 214,000 248,000
=N Associate 4,074 4,087 3,992 4,087

4,074 4,087 217,992 252,087
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34. MR AR ()

R_TBTZ+E=ZA=1+—8  REHHA
HARARGTRITWERMER T ZRIT
HRE(ZEZEFEHH : 608,000
7T) - MARIABEAEBERARBERME
FTHEARAZBTHEARABEEH ALY
4,074,000/ 7T (ZZ T /XF : 4,087,000/
JC) % 3,992,000 L (ZZE T N F -
4,087,000/ 7T) °

35. EEHERH

AEFRESEHETHEAESETEE
EMEREBTIES MEZHEETHD
—ZE_+Fo

RZZBTZH+F=A=+—H XEEWHE
TABEZEEHEPRAKLENES
mE o mEEERNAENT

34. Contingent liabilities (Continued)

35.

As at 31 March 2007, the banking facilities
granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees
given to the banks by the Company were not
utilised (2006: HK$608,000 utilised), and the
banking facilities guaranteed by the Group and
the Company to associates were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$4,074,000 (2006:
HK$4,087,000) and HK$3,992,000 (2006:
HK$4,087,000) respectively.

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office premises
and staff quarters under operating lease
Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty

arrangements.
years.
At 31st March, 2007, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

rEE
Group
—EELHF —ZEERF
2007 2006
FETT F#ET
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 9,735 9,680
RE_FEFRF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(BRERMF) 20,893 21,455
HBARF After five years 31,880 33,620
62,508 64,755
REER  ARrAEENEALERE As at the balance sheet date, the Company had
ZHE o no significant operating lease arrangements.
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36. Kif

B EXHE3S 2 EEMEAEFBI - K
SEREEBIE NI EARAE -

36. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 35 above, the Group had the
following capital commitments at the balance
sheet date:

rEE

Group
—EBLE —TTREF
2007 2006
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI ERIER®E Contracted, but not provided for:
N Property, plant and equipment 7,818 4,996
i # 3 25 Equity securities — 5,769
7,818 10,765
REEH » RARIBIEAERERAE - At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
significant commitments.
37. MEALX S 37. Related party transactions

(a)
29\
BATRS

AN E B QA
U BR 2 hiR 4 32 th

W — WEA T
MEZHS

BRI 5 I 7S R B b B AN FF L A9 32
RER - AEEB THEKNH

In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the

(a)

Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the
year:
REE
Group
—EELHF —ZEERF
2007 2006
Kt iF FETT F#ET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Royalty expense charged by an
associate of the Group (i) 2,226 1,866
Purchases of good from
a related company (i) — 4,000
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37. REALTEZ S () 37. Related party transactions (Continued)
Bt - Notes:

(i) MEZIEHERBEAEE-—ZXWBEL (i)  The royalty expense was calculated based

FARFANFTHENE LFETESRDN on the number of electronic handheld

HFEMAE LR - MIEKEHIN R products sold by a subsidiary of the Group

BENTIRZMBATEI S 2R during the year, and the terms as stipulated

BHEA - in the royalty agreement between the

associate and that subsidiary.

(i) EERAEMBEBEZRMETIIBES (i) The directors consider that the purchases
MTHEARHEMERF 2 ARER of raw materials were made according to
RigHEmEL - RAGEFERER the published prices and conditions similar
EERZBELNAEEER ° to those offered to other customers of the

related company. Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, a director of the Company, has a
beneficial interest in the related company.

by KEBMEIEEEABRH : (b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

—EELHF ZETREF
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEEEA Short term employee benefits 13,089 13,245
MERIHI 2 S  Performance related incentive
payments 667 562
EEELRKE Employee share option benefits 317 455
18 H|
BARET B R Pension scheme contributions 444 418
THREZEE AE Total compensation paid to key
2 4e R management personnel 14,517 14,680
EEPeE P BEHNIBRERMN Further details of directors’ emoluments are
F8 e included in note 8 to the financial

statements.
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3. MERBREERERRIBRK

AEBETIEcRIABERE  BKRES
AR H A UR R - RS R HF R R
F’Eﬁféf%ﬁﬁ AR EMENE BRR -

AEESRTITEEENTZERRAEER
B mIBERRE  RenE2FEER &

SNEEK - EFERTRATTELER
BRI -
EERR

$%lz1:f*?mﬂ/*££7kaﬁf£\%ﬁ’éuﬁzﬁ§
cAEBRABRE LRBRIBEERK
DEBZEFP RZTZZELF=A=+
—E%ﬂk%)ﬁfﬁﬁfé%ﬁ%u&ﬁﬁ KRB B
B79% (ZFTNEF : BiB82%) o fHiEL
BEPAREEERINER  EBHAEH
BAEKNEABEYE - ABEERBRE
EREK AEBEEEEELZR—4EAE
BEEEEERE  FEEHREMEE
B UERKIREE I E e E
e ltih AEEeTEHEMEEERNE
SREWER 2] B RERE - AR TR
Bl & BIEE R 2R MEEIE - St
CAEEEERAAEEZEFERRE
LZEEEWAKNBRIE -

\ unk

<

38.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables,
cash and short term deposits and trade and other
payables.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are credit risk, market price risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. The top five
customers represent over 79% (2006: over 82%)
of the amount of trade receivables as at 31st
March, 2007. The failure of these customers to
make the required payment could have a
substantial negative impact on the Group's
profits. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.
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3. MERBEEERRKE (H)

FERR (8

AR AEEEERAIZEEBEZE=ZT
ETEE WY E|BREHERS -

AEEHEBMBEE (BRREMREFE
HE - AIHERBERBAFELARR
RZWEBE) 2 FEERBREBHNTRE - M
REz&s ERAFNZETAZER
=

™ 15 B & E B

MG EREREZRNAIRE S TENR
FAER LAY - EHEERAEER
MGEREPHTAIRLEINEERR -

AEBERERETREFERRERER
st ABEMFREMERZRARRE&
K -

REREFN AR

AEERMSEHNEEH AR ETREAE
Bz A FECABRER CREREHEFR
Bl - ARBERERENETEHPEER - R
- AEEGEREEN KRS /R - I
REBRBERZEAENEPEG -

38. Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
available-for-sale investments and investments at
fair value through profit or loss, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Market price risk

Market price risk arises mainly from uncertainty
about future prices of the financial instruments
held. It represents the potential loss the Group
might suffer through market price movements.

The Group periodically performs evaluations and
impairment assessments of the investments in
order to minimise the risk associated with the
investments held.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's investments at fair value through profit
or loss and short term deposits. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group monitors its exposure
to interest rate fluctuation, and will consider
appropriate hedging measures in the future as
the need arises.
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3. MERBEEERRKE (H)

S R B

AEBPERHEERAR - ZFRABRKA
LEEMNHERBE (BN ERR
5N o NEE BN EKE 5 ERAMENE
SRFIAINNE REHE - AN BRI E
ESNEH MK - A AEEEEYE
ZHOMNERB R - WA RN BEE
BB E O E R EE -

39. MBHRERZHE

AFBREN _ZZTLFLATN\BEHE
SHE R ETIE -

38.

39.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Certain trade receivables and
payables of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation, and will consider appropriate hedging
measures in the future as the need arises.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
18th July, 2007.
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Financial Summary

AMEYFFAXRNBLECH BT RRZES — 8

This summary does not form part of the audited

e financial statements.
XiE RESULTS
BZ=A=1+-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
—ZE-f  —ZTEME —ZTHE —TERE ZEELE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
FET FET FET FEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
WA Revenue 1,147,607 1,355,648 1,309,630 1,490,757 1,237,317
T B 4 Profit before tax 30,043 159,811 62,761 76,271 77,781
TSR (X ) BE Income tax (expenses) credit (3,878) 1,698 226 (21,880) (17,873)
AEEGF Profit for the year 26,165 161,509 62,987 54,391 59,908
JE(G BT Attributable to:
ARAREREA Equity holders of the
Company 42,011 162,084 62,158 54,391 59,324
SEHBRERER Minority interests (15,846) (575) 829 — 584
KEERF Profit for the year 26,165 161,509 62,987 54,391 59,908
EEHRAER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+-H
At 31st March,
—ZE-f  —ZTEME  —ZTHE —TERE  ZEBtE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
FETL FETL FETL FETL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEQE Total assets 763,432 912,582 870,703 854,940 859,351
BERE Total liabilities (314,629) (323,722) (264,852) (255,092) (250,181)
448,803 588,860 605,851 599,848 609,170
ARAIRERE A Equity attributable to equity
JFE 1l % 12 holders of the Company 448,228 588,860 605,022 599,001 607,699
LEREER Minority interests 575 — 829 847 1,471
448,803 588,860 605,851 599,848 609,170
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Particulars of Major Properties

AEER-EE+E=A=+—ARBEEY
2 HEMT -

&8 LB

Name/location

HEWE

Leasehold properties:

1. BENEEZEREBESR
EMIEP L2218
13245 T35 R
Hh & P35 1% AL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. HTHERZRZESETK
REMRTHE
ErERRE
FENIXRE
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

2007 B 4 Annual Report

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at
31st March, 2007 are set out below:

5l
Type

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

&

Lease term

hEB

Medium-term lease

hEB

Medium-term lease
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